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Financial Reviews

RESULTS

For the year ended December 31 2003, sales increased by 19% 10 £95 0m (2004 £79 §m) The Group 1~ crganned
into two business segments Co-edinen Publishing 1nd Pubhshing Co ediion Publishing revenues incredsed by 2% to
£37 Om (2004 £36 4m) Publshing revenues increased by 34% co £58 Om {2004 £43 4m), the growth bemg dinven
by the acquisiions made 1 the second half of 2004 and in the first half of the current vear Sales by geographic
market were US £46 3m (2004 £43 Im), Australasia £18 3m (2004 £8 4m), UK £15 9m {2004 £15 8m), Lurop
£10 4m (2004 £9 2} and ROW £4 1m {2004 £3 3m) The US market was sohid {or most of our businesses Lhe
sales growth in Australasia was denven by acquisinons without which, revenues were down 13%, reflecnng a difticule
rctad eny ronment UK sales, exeluding acquisitions, wee down 7%, again retlectng a dithicule retnl enviionment

for the book trade In contrast to Ausralasia and the UK, we achieved good growth wa Furope
Gross profit increised by 20% to £34 6m (2004 £28 9in) and represented 36 4% {2004 36 294) of salcs

Profie from operations before amorusanon of intangbles and non-recurnng wems increased by 17% 10 £8 8m (2004
£7 Sin) and reprisented 9 2% (2004 9 4%) of sales Opcrating profit aftur these costs amounted to £6 6m (2004 £7 Om)

During 2005, we announced that, in order to smprove the porformance ot our two publishing and markeung savices
uns we had dectded co amalgamate the rwo operations at one site We incurred one-off restructuring chges of
£644 000 1 am pleased ro teport thar the savings thac we had predicred, at the tme of the Announcement, are being
realised We also incurred £102,000 of one-off aborted acquisiuon osts during the firse halt of the your

Lhere was 2 much hugher charge i 2005 for the amorusanon of wntangbles, which mcsiased from £0 Sev e L1 din,
this refates to the acquisinons made s 2004 and 2005

Not interest pavable increased by 38% to £2 2m {2004 £1 A} Lhe incease 1 hecause the aserage rate ot interest
paid during che year increased by 15% from 4 7% 1o § 4% and because of igher ner debe leveds as a resalt of the
acquisinons made ui the second half of 2004 and che first half of 2005

The etfective tax rate for the vear was 28 5% «ompired to 23 3% last year which was low because ot the unihsaton
ol tax losses not previously recognised

BALANCE SHITT
Goodwill and other mtangible assets increased 1o £15 2m from £13 1m Addinons, ansing on acgusitions amounied

te £2 Sm and chete was an exchange gan uf £1 0m, these were offser by amottsanon chacges ot £1 4m

Inventori~s increased to £23 Sm from £20 6m because ot currency movements [year end race for the USS, tor

evample. was 1 72 compared 1o | 92 a year ago) and acquisitions

lrade recavables increased co £25 Sm from £21 Sm paethy because of currency movements and partly buoiuse ot
strong sdles w the last quarter, in partcular for the co cdivon paslishing unwes  rade recovables eepresene 28
monchs sales, compared to 2 8 momns sales ar the ond of 2004

At the year end, our net debt was £33 tm. up £2 Om compaced o 2004 (£33 Im} (n a constant cuteency baas s
£32 7m, down £0 4m, 1n hne with expectations The most signihicant items thar imp wred the mosement in net debr,
excluding the exchange difference during the year, were a spend of £2 9m on acquisinions and the consversion of

2 947,252 shares of preferred stock, which under IFRS were treated as debt wuh a value of £2 6m into shaces of
common stock Qur tatal tunding facilities at the year end were £65 7m, and of this, £58 7m was commutted tor
more than onc year

" -
Y
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Financial Review

SHAREHOLDER RETURN

Adjusted fully diluted earnings per share {see note 10 on page 62 were 20 8p (2004 21 2p) The reduction was due 1o
the anticipated increased tax charge Had the tax rate been the same as last year, adjusted fully diluted earnings per
share would have been 21 §p, an increase of 1 4%

The proposed final dividend of 3 6p represents an increase of 2 2% on last year's final dividend The 10tal dividend
for the year 1s 6 $p, an increase of 4 0% on last year The total dividend 15 3 2 umes covered (2004 3 4 tmes) by
adjusted fully diluted earmings per share

The marker price of the shares of common stock on December 31, 2005 was 185 5p, up 2 2% compared to last year
(181 5p)

Quarto’s common stock has generated a very strong total shareholder return over the five years and three years ended
December 31, 2005 of 170% and 128% respectively Over the same period, Quarto’s common stock has significanty
outperformed the FTSE small cap index and the media secter

TREASURY

The Group’s borrowings, liquidity, interest rate and foreign exchange exposures and banking relanonships are
managed at Group level The following policies have been applied during the year to manage the financial nisks faced
by the Group with regard to funding and hquidity, interest rate exposure and currency rate exposures

. Liquidity nisk, the Group prepares an annual cash flow forecast which 15 reviewed by the Board cavering the
next rwelve months This forecast 1s reviewed 1n the light of the facilines available to the Group to ensure that
we have adequate hquidity The Directors, having made enquinies, consider that the Group will have adequate
resources for the foreseeable future

. Interest rate nsk, n order to protect the Group front increases tn US$ nterest rates, while sull allowing it to
take advantage of lower potential interest payments from a fall in rates, we entered into an interest rate swap
m 2004 to fix the interest cost on US$30,000,000 of borrowings untl July 17, 2007

. Currency rate exposure, the Group’s principal operating currency ts the US dollar Approximately two thirds of
our sales are denominated m US dollars and a greater percentage of our expenditure At Group level we try to
match our annual US dollar receipts and payments in order to minigate the impact that exchange rate
fluctuanions, with regards to the US dollar, have on our results In 2005, we had net US dollar income

The following table sets out the principal average rates of exchange used in translating the results of our overseas
subsidiaries v

2005 2004
US Dollar 182 183
Hong Kong Dollar 14 14 1425
Australian Dollar 239 249

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)

Under IFRS, there were a number adjustments to the histonic figures, which are explained 1n detail in note 34 The
three most sigmficant differences 1 ¢ the calculanon of goodwll, the amortisation of intangibles and the classification
of the cumulanve redeemable preference shares as debt, have no impact on cash flow

FINAMCIAL REPORTING

We have very tight reporting deadlines so that we can focus on runmng the business This requures considerable
commitment and hard work from my staff and I would like to thank them all for their hard work, unstnting support
and loyalty We have had an extremely busy year and, ar umes 1 have asked a lot from my staff, bur they connnue to
produce the goods

]
M J Mousley .p

Chaef Financtal Officer

February 23, 2006
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present thur report and the audiced finanaal statements of The Quarto Group, Inc, tor che vear cnded
December 31, 2005

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group conducts an snternaaonal buseness whose principal activity 15 as a publisher ot ilpstrated non-ficnon
books 1n co-edition and under its own imprint, for boch adults and chuldren A deruled review of the dovdopment of
the business of the Group 1s given in the Chawrman’s Report on pages 3 1o 13 and the Koview of Operations on puses
16 to 32

RESULTS AND DHVIDENDS
The profir for the yeir after caxanon and minority nterests amounted o £2,497,000 (2004 £3,734 000)  The Direcrors
propose a [inal ordinarv dividend of 3 6p (2004 3 5p) per shaie subject 10 approval ar che Annual General Mceune

VREC TORS

Fhe Directors of the Company, who served as Dircctors throughout the year were s tollows

L t Orbach

R | Morley

Mo ] Mousley

P Campbell (Nen-cxecunve)
P Waine (Non-executive)

L Collins {Non-txecutive}

Previously an academuc 1n New York, Laurence Orbach, Chairman and Chuct Laccunve, had seme publishiag
experience before founding Quarto in 1976 Together with his roke as Chairman and Chuef | xcounve, hes abso

responsit . for Group Saategy

Robert Moiley, Creative Durector trained as a4 designer, and was magizine art director for the Sunday Telegraph
berween 1967 and 1970 Betore wo-founding Quarto he spenr some tume with Reader’s Digest and [PC i Works,

amongst others

Mick Mousley, Group [inance Director, I 5¢, A C A, worked for 12 years at Delowie Tashains 80 Sdls (now part of
P1ice WaterhouseC oopers), the last ewo years of which were as a seruor manager in the Mergers and Acquisitions

Department  He joined Quarto m 1987, and was appunted Finance Director in 1989

Fducated ar Fron College, Peter Campbell started his business career wath the Booker Group, holding o number of

marketing positions in thewr Unieed Rum Merchanis subsidiary Trom 1972 to 1989 he was with the Ocean Group,
munally on the sales and markeung side, and from 1987 10 1989, he ws the General Manager, UK Opuranions for
the MSAS subsidiary, with responsibalicy tor 27 locations and 800 statf Since 1989 he has been involved m

managett .ot training and development

Perer Waine has a wide corporate experience gamned as a result of holding eaecvove and non-execunve Brirectorships
n a variery of different sectors and with companies both pubhc and private, up to £1 hillion tuinover The
orgausanans he has worked tor melade GFC, Caopers & Ivbrand WR Reval and the CBI He 15 the co-tounder

of Hanson Green the prmupal source for non-execunive yppoinements in the Uk

Leigh Colhins has been a stockbroker sinee 1970 and was a direvtor of Collng Stewart Limuted  of which he was a
tounding director in 1991, unul 2000

Nomne ot che Directois has a service agreement of more than one vear s durinon

S3ve as disclosed in Note 33, no Director has had a materil interest 1 ans contract of swignificance with the company

or 15 submidiaries during the year

a4
AN
A = 4




’

4

0

DIRFCTORS INTERESTS

The Pnrectors wha held office ar December 31 2003 had the following interests in che share ciputal of the Compiny

Number ot JSS0 10 shares of common stadk

SHAREHCLDING December 31, 200§ Januar 3, 2005
L I Orbach* 2,886,385 2,858,985
R ] Morly 1 402 852 1 402,552
M | Mouslev 31 700 42,700
L Colliny (Non-execunve) 337.650 337,650
P Campbell {Non-evecutive) 1,000 1,000

P Waine (Non-execunive) -
Details ot the Directors’ options are given in the Duecrors Remuneriuon Report an piae 48
*2,678,413 shares in which L | QOrbach 1s intercsted aee owned through his farmulv reusts

L | Orbach held 10,000 and M | Mousler held 15,000 comvurable cumulative redeemable sharcs of preforecd
stoch of par value USS0 10 each ar Januas 1, 2005 On june 1, 2005 they comverted their ene holdings of
convertihle cumulanive redeemable shares of preteried stock inro commnn stock 10 100 ot 60 commaon stoch

shares for cvery 100 shares of convernble cumulauve redeemable shares ot preterred siock

During the year the marker price of the sharws of common stock rangud basween 176p aind 214p The muke pre
at December 31, 2005 was 185 5p

Berween December 31, 2005 and Tebiuary 23, 2006 there have been no changes inthe interests of the Dincerers

EMPLOYEES

Applications for employment ot disabled persons are alwiys fully considered bearmg v mind the 1potudes of the
applicant concerned In the event of staff becoming disabled, every effort 1s made 10 nsure that ther emplinmene
with the group continues and that appropriace trunmg 15 arringed  Ic s che policy of che group thar the oo
varcer development and promoton of disabled pursons should as far 15 possible, be idential with chat of other

cmployees

The group places considerable value on the involvement ot s anplovecs and has contnucd sts pracace of kegpng
them wiormed on maters affecting them as emplonees 1nd on the vanous facrors 1ftecune the pertornince of the
group  This is achieved through formal ind mtormal meenngs  Fmplovees are consulred regularly on g wide 1 inge

of matters aftecting thatr cureent and future intorests
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SUBRSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
As at Febiuary 23 2006, cthe larest practieable date prior to the publranion of this report the Directors have been aduised
of the following shareholders who hive an incerest af 3% or more 1n the shares of common stack of the company

Numbes of USS0 10

, Sharts of common stock Purcentau
] © Iambro Caputal Management 4,093 172 20 U%
L | Orbach 2,886,385 14 1%
Herald Invesumnent Truse 1,735,000 835%
R | Morley 1 402,852 9%
Invesco Fnglsh & Internatonal Trust 1 265,000 6 2%
The Quarto Group Inc 886,321 43%
Lipntrust 802,932 39%
Lattice Growp Pension Schume 734,882 3 &t
Lnnisme o lund Management 615,000 34

GOINRG CONCER BASE

Atrer making enquuries, the Dhirecrors have tormed judgement art the ur e of approving the finanaal stcements
thar there 15 a 1easonable expectation that the group has adequace resources (o conmmue in operational existence tor
the foreseeible future For tus ceason the Directors continue to adoprt the going concer basis m prepanng the

hnanual statements

RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGT
Lhe Group s risk managomens strategs 1s set out on page 38 of the Fmanual Review

CORPORAT: GOVERNANCE
The Directars have reviewed the governance arrangements of The Quarto Group, Inc n the context of the
Combised Code, revised m July 2003 and Delaware Law  The prenciples of the code have been apphed as tollows

a) The Roard of Directors represents the shareholders’ interests in maintauing and growing a suceessful busimess
ncluding optumsing conssstent long-term financial returns

b) the Board comprscs of thrie caeutive Direcrors and three non-exe 1inve Dhrcetors I he non-cxecutive
Directors, P Campbell P Waine and 1 Collins are considered by the Board to bu mdependent, not withstandimg
the face thar P Camphb N receves £15 000 tor consvling fres and rhar L ¢ ollins has 337,650 shares

<) The Board meets six times a year Fach of the Direcrors artended all of the meeungs held during the vear A
tormal agenda s prepared for cach meering and all boed pipers and infermanon are arcelared to the Board
forty-esght hours before the meetings

d) Al of the Directors are subject to re-clecnion by the sharcholders 4t the Annual General Meetng

) [he romuncranon of the exceutive Directors 1s recommended by the Remuneranon Commutter The
Remuncrauon of non-exccutive dircctors v determmed by the Board as 2 whole A scparate report with
respect to Directors remuneranon s mcduded on page 44 The Commitie does not have formal wntten oms
of refurence

f T« Chairman and the Finance Director are responsible for wmvestor relinons  They meet wirh majon
shareholders during the course of the year 10 ensure that they develop an understanding of then views, which
are communicated to the rest of the Board at Board Meetings The non-executive Lirectors meet with mjor
shareholders from ume 1o nme Shareholders are mvited 1o attend hie Annual Meetng at least twenny working
davs 1n advance of that meetng Lhe Chasrman of che Audit and Remuneration Committee P Wi, who s
also che Sentor Indepeadent Dircctor, attends this meeting

g) The Audit Comnutiee comprisng P Campbell P Waine and L Collims, 15 chawed by Perer Waine and meors
with the independent audicors at lease twace a vear 1 Collins provides the Commutcee wiath financial expurience
The € onumiteee regulacly ceview ac Board lovel the fnanaal back up and facthoes 1y lable ar Pead Office, as the
Group connnues to expand  The Commuttee has formal wricten terms of reference The Commuttee momitors the
level of non-audt fees pad to the audicors to ensure that their objecey ity 15 safeguirded

h} The non-executin e Directors meer to discuss the execunive Directors with the Chairman present and also muet

with the executive Directors without the Chairman present
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The Combined Code introduced a requirement that the Directors review the effectiveness of the Group’s system of
internal controls, to cover all controls including financial, operational, comphance, and nsk management Following
publication of guidance for the Directors, Internal Control Guidance for Directors on the Combined Code (the
Turnbull gmidance), the Board confirms that there 15 an ongomng process for, and an annual review covering, the
dennfication, evaluation and management of the significant nisks faced by the Group, that has been 1n place for the
year under review and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts and that this process 1s regularly
reviewed by the Board and accords with the guidance  The process 1s carried out through, inter alia

a}  Group Board meenungs

'} Quarterly subsidiary management meetings
c) Presentattons by subsidiary Chief Executive officers to the Board
d)  Duiscussion and review by the Executive Board and the finance department during the several visits per year to

individual operanng units
e) Discussions with professional advisors where appropriate

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The dunes of the Audit Committee include

a) Momnitor the integrity of financial statements and formal announcements

b) Review the Company’s internal financial controls

c} Make recommendations n relanon to the reappointment and removal of the external anditor
d)}  Approve remuneration and terms of engagement of the external audiror

e) Revtew and monitor independence and obyectivity of the external auditor

The Board has constdered the need for an iternal audit function, but has resolved, that due to the size of the Group,
this cannot be justified on the grounds of cost effectiveness at present

SUPPLIER PAYMENT POLICIES

The Group agrees terms and conditions for its business transactions when orders for goods and services are placed,
ensuring that suppliers are aware of the terms of payment and included the relevant terms i1n contracts where
appropriate  These arrangements are adhered to when making payments, subject to the terms and conditions being
met by the supplier At December 31, 2005, Group creditor days amounted to 100 days (2004 107 days)}

The holding company does not have any trade creditors

AUDITOR
Qur independent auditor, KPMG Audit Ple, 1s willing to continue 1n office and, accordingly, a resolunion 15 to be
proposed at the annual general meeting for the reappomntment of KPMG Audit Plc as auditor to the company

)
M | Mousley
Secretary

February 23, 2006
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Dircctors’ Remuncration Report

WNTRODUCTION

The remunertion commuttee i responstble for making iecommendations on behalt of the Bodrd on the remuneriion
policy with regard ro the Company’s execunive Directors It cousists of the chree non-executive Directors The
remuneration commutree 15 consticuted within the relevant provisions of Scetion B of the Combined Code an tranung

its remuneraton policy This report set< out the commirtee’s policy and disclosures on Lhrector s rumuncraton

REMUNEFRATION POILICY
Remuncranon levels are set by reference to individual pertermance, expericnce and marker condiions with 1w o

providing a package which 1s appropnate for the responsibihings mvolved

An imdwvidual director’s performance 15 1eviewed and assessed constantly throughout the year and speaifically 1t ewa
formal meetings of the remuneration commuittee ecach year This prowess includes considaranen of the finanaal
results of the Group

The stated policy 15 capoered to reman in place tor the forthcoming vear

COMPONFNTS OF REMUNERATION
Basic salaries are determuned according to the competitine marker tor executive directars, tahing info 1ount ther
experience, concriburion and performarce  This determininen 1s carried out inrernally

Bonuses and share opnions are awarded on t discretuonary basis in recognition of indwvidual pertormances during the ve

Opuons graneed under the Company s Lxecunve Share Opuion Schames arce at market value at the date of grant ind
exerasable berween a munimum period of thred vears and a maximum pertod of seven vears or ton yews - Opueens
are excretsable of there has been an increase in the Group's tarmings per shaie of at least 2% per annum above the

growth in the tctail prices index over a period of three years

SERVICE AGREEMeNTS
The executive Directors have service agreements which provide for 12 month's nouce by the Director or the
Company There are no provisions for compensation other than the notce peniod  As from 2004 che independent

non-uxecunive Direcrors are engaged on annual rolling contracts  Thar fees are roviewd by the Board
All of the Direcrors seand tor 1e-clecoar anmially ac the Annutl Genaral Mecang of the Company

FOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN
The following graph charts the total shareholder return ot the Companv tor the 11st tive vears

The mdex selected for companson 1s the FTSE Media and Frtertainment index as they was considered to be a broad

representacion of the Company's peer group in terms of its size and business
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The auditors are required to report on the information contained tn thus section of the remuneranion repoce The

remuneranion 1n respect of each Dhrector who served as a Director during the year was as tollows

NAME OF DIRFCTOR

L [ Orbach

R | Morley

M ] Mousley

P Cuamnpbell (Non-execuuve)
P Wame (Non-execurive)

L Collins (Non-execunve}

i~ By & e 2004
14} s REN T IERR Y TOTAIl

’ Logo

325 30 12 67 338

177 - 11 188 176

179 25 5 205 7R

42 - - 42 40

30 - - 30 25

27 - - 27 25

776 35 28 859 782

Bencfies consist of benefirs in kind n respect of health and lite insurance  The emuneration of P Wame s £30 000

and for P Campbell and 1 Callins 1015 £27,000 tor theu ongoing reles as non-executive Directors  In addition P

Campbell recerved £15,000 of consulting tees on an arm’s length basis

Each of the execunive Direciors has a defined contribution pension plan Dunng the year wontnbunions weie made

as fullows

[ 2004
v 1000
I F Orbach 89 -2
R | Morler 26 26
M J Mousley 30 16
145 124
ThoAb T OPTHONS
Details of share opnions of those Directors who served during the year are as follows
At Janvary At Decenber Lxcrase Larliest date Lxpiry
1. 2005 31, 2005 price” of exerise Dare
[ F O:ibach 10000 10,000 £1 115 2222003 2122007
R ) Morley 5000 5000 £1 115 2222003 2122010
“i | Mousley 10 000 10 000 L1135 2221003 1) 22010
5,000 5,000 £ 685 3132001 3032008
15,000 15,000 £0 825 2932004 2832011
3,900 3.9G0 L0773 26220058 2522012
11,100 P1,100 £0 773 2622005 2522009
7,500 7,500 £0 8’3 14 22006 1322010
7,500 7,500 £163 3092007 2992011

* Markee price 1t dare of award

No gains were made by Dircrors on the excrese of the share aptions in the current or priot viar Details uf che

periirmance writeria of these opuions are given above wnder Components of Remuncornen The highest and lowis

prices of the Company’ shares during the year were 214p and 176p respecuvelv  [he price acthe vear end was 185 Sp

This repe. 1 was approved by the Board of Directors on Februacy 23, 2006

P Waine, Charrman of Remuneration Commuttee

-
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Statement of direcrors’ responsibilities i respect of
the directors’ report and the financial statements

The Company 1s mcorporated in the State of Delaware Umited Stazes and i subjet w the law ol that stawe which
places no requirement for tnnual reporting ro sharcholders upon the directors  However, since the company his 3
histing on the [ ondon Stock Fxchinge and a place of business in the Uk, the directors 1re required to prepare

financial statements which comply wich eertain provisions which are contamned within che [ sty Rules of the Uk

Fmancial Services Authoricy (the Esung Rules) ind UK company law for overse s companies

Fhe company 1s an * oversea” company within the meamng of the Compamis Act 1985 Lhe dirccrors have dhecred
to prepare the group financial statements n awce dance wath 1ERS as adopred by the EU. and the parentcompiny

finanaal scatements 0 accordance with UK Accounung Standards

The directors have accepted respousibility for preparing group finangizl stitements as required by 1FRSs a5 adopred
by the kU which present fairly che financia) posinon and the performance of the group, the Compames et 1985
provides i relanon to such tinancial stitements that references in the rebevant pin of that Act to hnanaal statements

gving a teune and fair view ar roferences to ther adhieving a fair prosentanion

The directors have acepted responssbility for prepanng parcnt company financial statements which give a rue and

fair view ot che state of aftaurs of the parent company

In preparing each of the group and parent company financial stazements, the directors hwve 1ceepred responsibihiey o

. select suatable accounung policies and chen apply them consistendy

. make judgments and esumares thar are re onable and prudent,

. for the group fmancial statements, state whether they have bean pre pured trweord e waith 1R as woptal
by the LU,

. for the parent conmtpany finanual statements, state whecher applicible UK Accountng Stand irds hve boen tollinwed,

subject to any matenal departures disclosed and cxplamed i the parenr company tnincial statements, wid
. prepare the hnancial statements on the goang concern basis unless 1t 1 Mappropruate o presume that the group

and che parent company will continue 1 business

Ihe directors have accepted responsibihey for keeping proper tecounting records thar discluese with reasonable
accuracy at any tune the fimanaal posinon of the parenr company and cnable thum o ensure thae s bl
statements comply with the refovant reqmrements of UK company law They hoave poacod rosponsilialy o riking
such steps as are reasonably open to them o safiguard the assers of the zroup and w prevent and deeeer fraud and

other irregularities

Under 1pplicable law the company 15 resnonsibl. ron preparing a Directars” Repare The directors hive 1lso wecepted
responsibithty for prepanng a Direcrors Remuneranion Report and Corporate Governance Statement that complh

with applicable law and regulanions as if the full requicements were to apph

1 he directors are responsible for the mamtenance and mregrity of the corporate and tinanual tormanon nluded
on the company’s websice  Legislanon in the Uk governtng the preparanon and disscmuinanion of tanaal sercements

may differ from legislation n ocher jurisdicions




Report of the independent auditors
to The Quarto Group, Inc

We hasc andited the group and parcnt company hinanaal scatements ithe “hnancial scacements’ § ot The Quarto Group,
Inc for the vear ended December 31, 2005 which compiise the group income statement, the group and parent compiny
balance sheets, the group cash flow statement, the group statement of recrgmised income and expense and the telated

notws These financial statements have been prepared under rthe accounung policies set out therein

This repore 1s made solely to the company 1n accordance with the wrms of our engagement  Our audir work has been
undertaken so that we mighe state to the company those matrers we are engaged ro state to them in chis audic reporr
and for no other purpose  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or 1ssume responsthilins to wnyone
ather than the company tor our audit work, for this report, or for the opimons we have tormod

RESPEL T Vi ABSPOND RILTTIES Ok D &L TORAS AND ALD TOR»

he directors’ responsibilinies for preparing the Durectors Report and the group financal statements 1 wcordince
with applicable law and Internatonal Financial Reporung Standards (IFRS) and the parent company finanaial
statemen: % n accordance wich applicable law 1nd UK Accounung Standards {UK Generally Accepied Accounting
Practice) are set out n the Statement of Directors” Responsibilinies on page 46

Our responsibality 5 to audie the hnanaal stacemones i accordance wath ur Lngagemenc leeea

Under the terms of our engagement letrer we report to you our opiruon as to whether the financial statements give 1
truc and fair view and whether the finanaal scatements b ave been properls prepared in accordance with the Compimes
Act as applicable o oversea companies  We also report to you tt, in our opimien, the Directors Report s not
consistent with the financial statements, f we have not recerved all che informanion and explanatons we require tor
our audit or «f information specified by taw regarding dircctors’ remuneration and other transaceions s not disclosed s
if that faw were to apply

In addinen to our audir of the financeal statements the duccrors have engaged us o audit the intormanon i the
directors remuneration report that 1s described as having been audited which the directors hive decided ro prepate as
it the Co npany were required to comply with the requirements of schedule 7A to the Compantes Act 1985 They have
alse engaged us to teview whether the Corporate Governance Statument teflects the company’s compliance with the
e prosisions of the 2003 FRC Combined Code specified for oun review by the Lisung Rules of the Financil Scrvices
Authority, and we report 1f 1t does not We arc not required o consider v wther the board's statements on internal
concrol cover all nisks and conrrols or form an opimion eon the efteetveness of the group's corporite governane

procedures or iy risk and control proceduces

We read other mtormation contuned n the Annoal Reporr and conssder whether 1t v consestent wirth che wudited
financial statements We consider the implications for our repoit it we become awtie of iy apparent missouements or

mcenial inconsistencics with the tinancial statemenrs Our responsibilities do not extend to any other informiton

BASIS OF AJDI™ OPINIC N

We conducted our audic in accordance with Internanional Standards on Auditing (UK and ircland} issued by the
Audinng Pracuces Board  An wdir includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence refevant to the amounts and
disclosus 5 1n the iinancal statements and the part of the directors remuneration repoit to be audied [t also includes
an assessment of the significant esnmates and judgments made by the duectors in the preparanon of the hnancal
statements, and of whether the accounsing policies are appropriace 1o the group's and compant’s circumsrinces

consistently applied and adequarely disclosed

We plannud and performed our audit so as to obrain ail the information and cyvplananions which we considured
newessary s order to provide ns with sutficient cvidence to give reasonable assurance thar the inancial staromenes e
free from material misstarement, whether causcd by fraud or other irregelanty or crror  In fernung our opimon we
alvo evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation ot mformanen i the fimancial statements and the pare ot the

directors’ remunerition report to be audired
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OPINION
In our opinion

. the group financial stacements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, of the
state of the group’s affairs as at December 31, 2005 and of its profit for the year then ended,

. the group financial stazements have been properly prepared mn accordance with the Companues Act 1985 as
applicable to oversea companies and the directors’ remuncration report has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Compantes Act 1985, as if the company were required to comply with the requirements
of Schedule 7A to that Act,

. the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK Genezally Accepted
Accounting Practice, of the state of the parent company’s affairs as at December 31, 2005, and
. the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
1985 as applicable to oversea companies
KOG Padl A 9/C
KPMG Audu Plc

Chartered Accountants
Regustered Auditor
February 23, 2006
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Consolbidated income statement
Year ended December 31, 2005

Notes

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue 3

Cost of sales

GRQOSS PROGFT

Other opuranng mncome
Dstribution costs

of ntangbles and non-recurring wwems
Amornsinon of incingibles
Non-recurring icems

Aborred acquisition costs

ESITUCTUCING COSLS

'

+

lot] adminstrative expenses

PRO®IT ~RGM OPERATIONS BEFORE AMORTISATION
CFINTANGIBLES ANL NON RECURRING [TEMS

s

OPERAT NG PROFT

[Nnance tmcome 7

[ mance costs 8
PROFIT BFFQRE TAX

Tas 9
PRQFiT FOR THEL YEAR

Aurnibucable 1o

Lquity holders of the parent

Minonty interest
EARNINGS PER SHARE

I rom contnuing operations

Basic 10

Dt ‘ired 10

[ 2004
fng LOOD

95 038 79750
(60,444) {50,880)
34,594 2n 870
237 126
{4,148) (3,014)
{21 898) {18,466)
{1,381) (505}
(121 -
(644) -
(24 025) {15,979)
8,779 7514
IGE 7007
128 [
(2,351) {1,680)
4,425 5,392
{1263} {£,259)
3,162 1,137
2,497 3,734
665 403

3 lal 4137
13 2p 20 8p
12 9p i96p

P
~-




Consolidated Statement of Recognised income and
expense Year Ended December 31, 2005

ARIITEN 2004
IR H £000
Exchange differences on rranstation of toreign operanons 485 (3%0)
Ner {toss) / gain on hedge of ner investment m foreign subsidiares t12m 13
Change in the fair value of cash flow hedges 329 130
NET INCOMEAEAPERNSE) RECOGNISED OMBCTLY IN EQUIYY ©94 {2277y
PROF:T FOR THL YLAR 3,162 4137
FOTAL RECOGNISFD INCOME AND EXPENSE FOR “HE YEAR 3 856 1950
ATTRIBUTABLE 1O
Equity holders of che parent 3191 3,507
Minorin interest 665 403
3856 3,910

>0
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Consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2005

2005 2004
Notes £000 £000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Goodwnll 11 10,317 7,732
Other intangible assets 12 4,842 5,334
Property, plant and equipment 13 8,533 8,982
Deferred tax assets 20 25 4
* Total non-current assets 23,717 22,052
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 15 23,521 20,638
Tax recewvable 152 154
Trade and other receivables 16 28,399 23,646
Cash and cash equivalents 17 14,431 12,578
Total current assets 66,503 57,016
TOTAL ASSETS 90,220 79,068
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short term borrowing 22 (3,932} (7,250)
Trade and other payables 23 (26,793} (24,995}
Tax payable (1,258} {1,304}
Total current habilities {31,983) (33,549)
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Medium and long term borrowings 18 (45,599} {38,408)
Deferred tax habilities 20 {668) (630)
Other payables (114) {210)
Total non-current habilities (46,381} {39,248)
TOTAL LIABILITIES (78,364) (72,797)
NET ASSETS 11,856 6,271
EQUITY
Share capital 24,25 1,162 1,063
Paid 1n surplus 25 21,716 19,199
Retained carrungs and other reserves 25 (14,666) (16,678)
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT 8,212 3,584
MINORITY INTEREST 25 3,644 2,687 '
TOTAL EQUITY 11,856 6,271

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for 1ssue on February 23, 2006
They were signed on its behalf by

M ] Mousley 3 O

Director

February 23, 2006 5 1




Consohdated cash flow statemene Year ending

December 31, 2005

PRORIT FOR IHE PERIOD
Adjustmenis tor
~Net finance costs
Depreciauon of property, plant and equipment
Tax expense
Amorusanon of mtangible assets
Lquity settled share - bascd pavment cypense
Lossfigain) on disposal of properry, plant and cquipnunt

Operatung ¢wh flows before movements in working capital

Decreasel/linore 1ve) 1 wmventoties
{Increase)/decrease 1n receivables

Diecrease in payables

Cash generated by operations

Income mves pud

NET CASYH FROM OPeRATING AC ¥ FIES

INVESTING ACTIVIT RS

interest recenved

Proceeds on disposil of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of properey, plant and ¢quipmen
Acgusinon of subsidianies {net uf wash acquired)

NEY CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends pud

Inte.cst payments

Procceds on 1ssue of share capual
New bank loans ruscd

Divedends paid to minornity intercst
NET CASH rUSED 1Ny PROM FINANCING ATTIVIY 5
NET INCREASE + (DECREASE) ' CASH AND CASH QU YALEN

CASHHAND CASTE LQUEVALLINTS AT BEQINNING M- YEAR

Foreign wurrency exchange differentes on c1sh and cash equisalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

' 2044

, Loon

3, E62 443"
2,223 tals
1,067 1.07%
1,261 1293
1,381 09
9 4

51 (1)
4156 8392
28 {722}
{3,057 31
{120Q) {1 668)
6,007 6 503
{1428 (1,062,
4 3579 5441
E19 S
237 35
{678) {1 02
{2 847 AR
(3169 (14 631)
{1,197) (1 O77)
(2,399 1,73
18 26

2 268 10 967
(121 {103)
{1402 8 060
] 11 13
10,611 124588
1280 (RS
11,899 10,611
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2005

t GrNERAL 1IN DAMALTION
The Quarto Group, Inc 1s 2 _ompany incorporated n the State of Delwware, United States The address of the
tegistered office 15 given on page 36 The nature of the group s operations and s principal actvinies are ser out in

note 4 and 1n the Directors Report on page 39

Lhest financial statunents are proseneed i pounds sterlng beciuse thae s the curreney of the prumary ceanomic

cnvironment 1 which the group operates  Foreign operasons are meduded i accordance with the policies ser out 1n note 2
2 SIGRIFICARN T ACCQUN NG POLICIFS

Statemer.. of comphance
The Group financinl statements vonsolidate chose of the Company and us subsidiaries {ngethar reterred 1o 1 the
“Group | The puent company hnincial statements present informanon about the Company as 7 sepiraw entury

and nort about s group

The Group hinancal statements have been prepared and approved by the directors m accordanee with Internacional
Funanaal Reporning Standards as adopted by the EU (¢ Adopted IFR%7) The Companv has efected to prepare i
patent company financial starements i accordance with UK GAAP, these are presented on piges 85 1o 89

The accounting palicies set ot below have, unless otherwise stited, been apphed vonsiseendy to ali penods prosenced
w these Group finanual starements and in prepanng an opening, IERS balane sheer at January 1 2004 for the

purposcs of the transimon to Adopted 1ERSs

Transimon to Adopted IFRSs
The Giovp 1s prepaning s fmanoal stacements n 2ccordance with Adopred IFRS for the first e 1nd conseguendy
has applied TFRS 1 An explanation of how the cransition o Adopred ITRSs has atfucred the reported finanaal

posicion, finanaal pertormance and cash flows of the Group 15 provided 1n note 34

IERS § Non-curtent assets held for sile and disconunued operations has been wdopted on January 1 2005 but has no

eftect on the financial statumems tor the year

Lhe following cxcmptions have been taken in these finanaal statements a) Bustcss combinations — Business
combinacons that took place prior to January 1, 2004 have not been restated b) Fair value or 1evaluanon as
deemed Lost — At the date of rransizon, fair value has been used as deemed cost for propercies previousty measured ac
fair value ¢) Cumulanve translation differences — Cumulanve translanion difterences tor all foreign operanons have

been set 1o 7ero at January 1, 2004

Basis of accounting
1he fina..aal statuments are propared on the historical cost basis, Lxcept char the dervanve finananl msuuments are
stated at fan value Non-urrent assers and disposal groups held for sale are staed at the lower of provious carrving

amount and tair value less coses to sell

The preparanion of financial statemets in contormity with IFRS cequues management to make judgements,
esumates and assumptions thar affect the applicirton of polices and reported amounrs ot assers and hatnhoes
mcome and expenses [ he esumares and associated assumptions are based en hustorical experience and virnous vther

factors that are believed to be reasonable under the urcumstances Actuat results may ditfer from these estmates

[he estimates and underlymg assumptions are revivwed on an ongong basis Revistons (o accounting estuaces art
recognised 1o the peniod i which the cstimaze 1s revised of the revsion affects only that penad o the penod of the
revision and tueure penods 1f the revision affeces both currear and fucure periods Judgemenos made by Managoment
in the apphcanion of [FRS, that have a wigmfleane etfect on the tinanaial statements and accountng estmates are

discussed 1n notes 11,16,18 and 20

The accounting policies set out below have been applied to all periads presented

!
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2005

Basis of consohidation

The Gioup finincial statements include the results of the company and all ot 1ts substdary undercakings A subsidinry
15 an ennity controtied, directly or indirectly, by the group Control 1s the power to govern the finanal and operaning
pohicies of the entty so as o obtain benedies trom s acuvities 1he financial statements of substdraries are included n

the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences unul che date thar control veiscs

Intragroup balances and any unrealised gams and losses or income and capenses ansing from miragroup rinswnons

arc chimnared 10 prepaning the consehdaed fina il statuments

Business combmauons, intangible assets and goodwill

All business combinations 1re accounted for by applying the purchase method Goodwilt represents the evcess of the
cost of the acquisition over the fair value to the group of the nev assets and anv conunpent labahities acquued
respect of acquisitions prior 1o January 1, 2004, goodwilt 1s included on the basis of its deemed cost which represones
the 1mount recorded proviously under Uk GAAP

Goodwill arisimg on 1cquisitions s stated at cost less any accumulaced impurment Tosses rom iy 1, 2004
goodwill 1s allocated o cash-generanng unies and 15 no longer amortized but s teseed annunlly for impairment Piior

to Januars 1 1998 goodwill was wricten oft to reserves in the year of acquisinon

Other wtangible assers such as backlsts, thac 1re acquired by the Group are stated 1t cost less wceumulited
amornzation and impairment losses Subsequent expendicure on capitalised intangible assets 15 expensed as meurred

Amortization of mrangible assets 1s charged to the income statemunt on & straight-line basis over the ¢stunared useful

lives of intangible assets The estimated uscful lives are 1 to 10 vears

Impairment of tangible and mangible avers mcluding goodwill

The carving amount of the Group's 15sets 1s reviewed each balince sheet dare to deternune whether there 1o 1m
indicanion of impanment If anv such indiation exists, the asset’s recoverable 1mount 1s esimated For goodwill, the
recoverable amount 15 esumated af each balanee sheet date An impairment loss 1s recognised whenever thy carrving
amount of an asser or ws cash-generaring umt exceeds us revovwrable amoune Impawment fosses are recogmscd 10 the

i ome statemeni

Revenue recognition
Revenue reproscnrs mvosced value of sales fuss annapared eeurens {bsed upon histonal returns oxperiencod,
excluding customer sales tanes and snter-group sales Resenues are recogmised on dospateh of goods and when the

sigmificant risks and rewards of ownership have ween passed to the buver

Leasing

Where assets are acquired under finance kases (including hire purchase concracts), which confer rughis and
obligations similar 1o those attached to owned ssets, the amount represcnting the outright purchase price ot such
asscts 1 tneluded in rangable fixed assets Deprecianon 1s provided m accordance wirth the accountng policy below
The capual element of furure finance lease payments 15 mcleded in credicors and the interest ddement is charged oo the
mncome ~tatement over the period of the lease in proporton the capreal element outstanding Fxpenditure on

opeianng leases 1s charged o the mcome statement on a str nght hine basis

koreign currencies
Lramsactions i foretgn cureencies are cranslaced ar che foreign cxehange rate rulng at the datt of the ramacnon
Moncrary assets and habihines denonunated in fortign curmneaes 1 the balance shee dace are transbued at the cxehanee

rate ruling at thar dace wath any «xchange differencs ansing on ruiranslanon being recopnised n tho imcome stiumene

he asses 7 1d habidities of toretgn operanons, induding goodwill and farr valoe adpssomenes ansing on
consohdanon, are translated nto scerling at exchange rates ruting at the balance sheet dare The revenues and
expenses of toreign operanons are rranslated into sterling at average annual exchange rites Fareign exchinge
difterences arising on retranslacion, smee January 1, 2004, the date of transition to HARS, are recogmised directh m a

separate translation reserve within equity




Notes to the Accounts Year endmg December 31, 2005
8

Retirement benefir costs

The Group's pension costs :elare to individual pension plans snd ate charged ro the income stitement as they f1ll due

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises both current and deferred tax Curient tax 15 the expected rax
payable on the taxable income for the vear, ustng tax rates cnacted or substantially cnacred ar the balance sheer date,
and anv adjustments to tan pavable ;m respect of previous vears Dofurred tax s provided using the balanc sheer
hability mechod, providing for temporacy differences between the carrying amounts of assets aind habilitres for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used tor taxation purposts Not all temporary diftercnces give rise o
deferred rax assers / habilies A defeired tax asset 1s recogmsed oniy to the extent thac it 1s probable thar turure
taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be unlised

Property, plant and equiprment

Propurry, planc and compment are stated ae deemed cost fess accumulated depreciation and any provision for
imparments 10 value The Group recognises 1a che carrying amount of properey, plant and cquipment the subscguent
conts of replaang part of such iems when there are future economie benehirs Al other costs are recognised m the

COME SAEMLNT ay 4N £XPeise s IhLy are incuried

Depreciauon 1s provided on 1 straight-line basis to write otf the cost, less the esumared residual value, of property
plant and equipment over thewr esumated useful lives Where parts of an item of plant and equipment have separate
lives, they are rccounted for and depreciated as separare iwtems Land 1s not depreciared

Lstimated useful hves are as foliows

Freehold and long leasehold property = 50 vears
Shore keaschold property - over the period ot the lease
Plant, equpment and motar vehicles - 4 to 10 years
Fixtures «nd fittings — 5 1o 7 years

Certain tems of property, plant and equipment, that had been 1evalued to fair value on or betore Januin 1 2004
the date of transition to 11 RS, are measured on the bass ot deemed cos,, beng the sevalucd amount ac thy date ol

that revasluation

Assers held under hnance leases are depreaarcd over thar expecred vseful Bves on the same basis as owned 1ssets or

where shotter aver the term of the relevant lease

The gain or logs arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset 15 deverstuned s the ditference borween the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset 1nd 15 recognised 1n income

Inventorics

Inventory v valued ar the lower of cost, includimg an appropuate portnon of overhads, and ner realisable value Net
reabisable value 1 the esnmated selling price in the ordinary course of business less esaumared costs of complton and
selling expenses Pioduction costs {excluding unit print costs), including an appropuiate proportion of overhe 1ds, 1n
1espece of a book aie charged to the income sratement on the tirst prinung of a hook

Financial insteuments
Imancial assets and financial habihinies are recogrused on the Group’s balance sheer when the group bicomes 1 party
to the contractual provisions of the instrumenc

Trade recervables
Trade recenables do not carry any wterest aad are stated 4t chewr nomunal value as reduced by appropriace

allowances for estumated irrecoverable amounts
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2005

Finanaal habilities and equity

Financral labilities 1nd equity struments are classified according to the substance of the coner wrual arangements
entered into An equity nstrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the group atier
deducting all of ws habihines Equity mstruments issued by the Company are recorded 1t the procceds recenved, net of
direct 1ssue oSt

Finance costs

{ inance costs comprise mterest payable en borrowings talculared using the ctfeting interest methods

Finance income

Finance ncome comprises interest 1ecenvable, which 1s recognised m che mcome statement as 1t weerues usimg the
effective mrerest method, and dividend »come \yh;ch 15 recogmised 1 che income statement when the right to recuve
payment s « stablished

Cash and cash vquivalents
Lot the purposes of the statenient of cash flows c1sh and crsh cquivilents comprises cash balinces, cll depesies und

bank overdrates that form an wtegral pare of the group cish management processes

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value

Denvanve finanaal mstruments and hedge accounting
1 he Group’s acuvities expose 1t pramartly to the fmancial nsks of changes i torogn correny wxchange ras and
nteeest rares Vhe Group uses forogn exchange forward contricts and imeerest it swap coRiricts (o hedge thos
cxposines Fhe Group docs not use dervanive finanaal instruments ter speeulative purposes

"l
The use of financial denvanives 15 governed by the Gioup s policies approved by the bord af direcrois, which provide

wrircen principles on the use of financial derivatives

Where 4 derivanve financial wstrument is designated as a hedge of the varabilins n csh flows of a recognined asser or
hiabihty, o1 a lughly probable torccasted rransacton, the effective part of any pamn or loss on the detvaove foananl
instrument 15 recopnised directly n equitv. Whan the torceasted transacnion subsequentls resates in the recogmnion ot 4
non-fianaal asset or non-hinancial hability the associated cumulanive gam or loss 1 rernoved from gty and
mnctuded 1n the uinal Lost o other cacryig amount of the non-finanaial asset or Talahey it che hedge ot 2 toree ted
transaction subsequently results m the recogmtion ot 4 financial assec or babilicy, the assouiated garns and losses that
were recognised directly 1in equicy re reclassibed 1nto profit o1 loss i the same period or perinds duning which the

asser acquired or hability assumed affects profit or loss (1 ¢ when the income or expense is recognised)

Compound Hinancaal Instruments
Preference share capital '
Prefirence share capeal s classbied as a habelicy it s redeamable om a speahic date or At the oprion of shaucholdars orat

dmvidend pavments are not discrenonary. Dividends thereon are included 1n the income siacement within bnancial costs

Convertible loan notes

Conveitible notes that can be converted ta share captal at the opron of the holder, where the number of shires
issued does not vary wich changes m thewr fair value, are accounted for as compound financial insteuments

[ cansactton costs that relate to the 1ssuc of a compound finaneial mstrument are allocated to the habihes md cquits
componeats 1n proporuon to the allocanon of procueds Ihe cquity component of the converuble notes s calenled
as the ¢xeess of the ssue procecds over the presint value of the future tnterest and poincpal pavmonts, discouned u
the marhet rate of mnterest applicatle to sunilar labiliows that do not have 1 conversion option | he mneerest expense

recognised 10 the income statement 15 cakoulated using che effective interest rate method
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2008

Sharc-based payments

The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS 2 Share-based payments  In accordance with the transition
pravisions, IFRS 2 has been 1pplied ro all grants of equity instrumenrs 1fter November 7, 2002 that were unvested 1
of Januars {, 2005

[ he Group 1ssucs cquity seetled and cash sereled share-based payments to wertain employees  Lquaty-seetled share-
bastd payments are measured at fair value ar the dace of grint Vhe fair value , detarmined ac che grant dae, of
equity sertled-share based payments s expensed on 4 straighe line basis over the vesung period based on the Groups

esimate of shares thar wall evencually vest

The far value of employee share option grants s calcnlated using a inonual model, aking e aceount the terms
and conditions upon which the oprions were granted The value of the charge 1» adjusted to reflecr expected 1nd

actual levels of oprions vesting

Borrowing costs
All borrowing osts are recogmised in the income statement in the porod o which they are mcureed

Adopted IFRS not yet apphed

The tollowing Adopred IFRSs were available for early application but have not been applied by the Group in these
finanual statements

I RS 7 ‘Einancaal inscruments Disclesure” applicable for vears commencang on or stter Jangary 1, 2007

The applicanon of HRS 7 in the current year would not have aftected the balance sheets orincome statemunr as the

standard 1v concerned only wich disclosure  The Group plans to adopt it for che vear ending December 31, 2007

Y RuvViNUE
An analvsis of the group’s revenue 1s as follows

g 2004

o Lugu
Sales of goods 95,038 79,750
Revenue 95,038 79.75()
Ocher operating income 2127 126
Finanee income 128 ]
Total income 95,393 79,941
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 51, 2000

4 BUSINESS AND GEQGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

Business segments

For management purposes, the group 1s currently orgamsed into two business segments  Co-edition Publishing and
B

Publishing These segments are the basis on which the group reports its primary segment information

[he infurmaton abourt these segments s presunted below

COESTON €O EDITION
BURI 3 * G, PUBLISHING s TOTAL
1893 2004 g 004
A £090 . £000
REvENUE
Total sales 38,314 37,391 96 303 B0 7RA
[nrer-sepment revenue (1,259) {1,024) (1,265} {1,036)
Lxternal sales 37,05% 16 367 95039 79750
Segment result before amortisation
of intangibles 4 380 4263 9,726 8345
Amortusanon of intangibles (12) (12) (1,381 1509)
Scpment result 4,368 4,251 8 343 T hi6
Unallocated vorporare expenses {951) (829
Aborted acquisinion costs {102 -
Restrucang costs (644)
Profic trom opetations 6 A48 7 007
[nvestment meome 128 63
Finance costs (2351 {1 680y
Profic bufore 1an 4,423 5,392
lax (1263) [1245)
Probi afier tax 3862 4§37

Inter-segment revenues are on an arms-length basis
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2003

4 BUSINESS AND GEQGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS {contiued)

4 TTION

PRI G

KN

3L

Capual addinons 199
Depreciation 3N
Amornsinon 12
S

I'here are o other sigmificant non-cash expenses

BALANCF SHEET

ASSETS
Segment assers 27,243

Unallocated corporate assers

Consolidated rotal asses

LIABILITIES
Segment habilines 13,747

Unallocated corporate Labidicies

Consolidaced total habilities

GEGGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

CO EDITION
PUBLISHING ~ PUBLSH ¥ PUBLISHING T TOTAL
2004 I 2004 . 2004
£000 Y. £000 ‘ £000
711 479 309 678 1.020
376 676 697 1 067 1,073
12 1,369 497 1,381 509
24,784 48,369 41,548 75.612 66,132
14 608 12736
90,220 79,068
12,348 13,160 12,857 16,907 25,205
31457 474592
78,364 72747

I'he following table provides an analysis of the Group's sales by geographial marker, wrespocttve of the ongin of the poods

United kingdom

United Seares of Amersca
Australia and Tar Last
Lurope

Rest of the World

Rever o Revenue
Tl 2004
3 L0000

15,848 15,804
46,305 43,072
18,344 8,175
10,415 9,211

4,126 3,184
95,038 79,750

The following 15 an analysis of the carrying amount ot segmenr assets and capieal addiuons analvsed by the geographucal

area in whach che assets are located

United hingdom
Uruted States of America
Other

C ronel Capial

Ayaers Assels Vldions Addinons
20k 2004 * oMy 2004
PO fo00 foup £oon
2571 24,486 435 584
32 326 28,453 161 201
17,584 13,393 82 235
75612 66 332 678 1,020

=

9
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2005

S PROFIT FRGM OPERATIONS

Profit from operattons has been arrived at atter chaigng/{credinng)

. 2004

e

Deprecianion of properry, plant and equipment 1,067 1,073

Nert forugn currency exchange losses / {gains) 4 (25)

Amoinisation of intangibles 1,381 50v

Sraft costs (see note 6) 13,707 13963

Auditors remuneranion tor audit services (see helow) 287 216

Cost of inventory recopmised 1s an expense 3,739 11 684
Restrucruring costs 644

Aborted acquusicion costs 102 -

Amounts pavable to the 1uditors in respeer of aon-andit services were £ 136,000 (2004 £14,000) 1hese comprised
IFRS reviews £63,000 (2004 £mul), ransaction services £55,000 (2004 £oul) and r1¢ services £18,000 (2004
£14,000) Incuded under auditors’ remuneration are 1udit tees in 1espect of the Companmy 1imounnng o £356 (00
{2004 £33,000) The fees have been denlt with threugh rhe financial statements of Quarto Publishing ple

& StArT COSTS

Do 2004
N Number
The average monthly number of employees [including execunve directors) was 483 440
taol

[heir aggregate remuneration comprised
Wages 1nd salanes 14079 12,417
Soctal seeuney coses 1,138 1,069
Other pension costs 484 423
Fquity settled transactions Ed 4
15,707 13,913

7 FINANCE INCOME

Mo 2004
LOG0
Interest on bank deposits 128 6y




Notes to the Accounts Year ending December

8§ FINANCE COSTS

31, 2005

2o Jund
2 ML Loy
lnterest on bank ovirdrafes and loans 2,106 1,187
Interest on obhigations under finance leases 41 47
linance charge on preference shaies 204 446
[oral finance costs 2331 I 680
9 TAX
2130y 2004
0 £000
Current tas 1,272 1,527
Deferred tax {note 20}
Current year origination and reversal of cuming differences {9 1272)
1,263 1,235
Corporaton tax on UK profits 1s caleulared at 30 % (2004 30%) of the estumated assessible prohic for the vear
Taxanon for other risdicnons s calculated ar che rates prevathng in the respeame jurtsdicrions
The chatge for rhe year can be reconciled ro the profic per the imcome setement s follows
6. 2y 2004 2004
2015 £900 "%
Profit before tax 4,425 5,392
“Fax ar the UK coiporanon cax rate ot 30%
{2004 30%) 1,328 1,618
Tax effect of unihisation of tax losses
not previously recognised (8} {397}
fax losses not unhsed 224 g2
Lifeut of differcent tax rates of subsidianics
operating in other junsdicoons {198) (63)
Other, m¢luding tax eftect of expenses chat
are not deducuble in determuning taxable profu 83) 13
Tax expense and eftective tax rate for the year 1,263 28 5% 1255 23 3%

Bawpe 20 |
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 200
IG EARNINGS PER SHARF
From continuing operauons
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share ts based on the tollowing dara
Earnings
204~ 2004
)l {000
Farmings for che purposes of basic earnings pes shire bemg net
profit atcnbusable 1o equicy holders of the parent 2,497 3,734
Fffect of dilunive porenuial ordinary shares
Interest on loan notes (ner of tx) 57 23
Interest on convernble redeemable preference shares 104 446
Larnings for the purpusts of diluted carnmgs pee share 2,758 4203
Number of shares
o Number
Weighted average number of ordintry shares
for the purposes of baswc earnings per share 18,893,419 17,955 495
Effect of dilutive potencial ordinary shares
Sharc oprions 139,183 11163
Ditutive loan note 1,074,288 437 347
Laluuve preference shares 1,218,131 2,923 514
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
tor the purposes of diluted earnings per share 21325021 21427992
na 2004
FLE ) Y |1tIILL
Basi 13 2p 20 8p
Piluted 12 9p 19 &p
Adjusted earmings
Earntngs for the purposes of basec carmngs per share being net
profir attributable to equity holders of che parent 2497 37w
Amortisation of meangibles {net of tax and mmoricy inverest) 915 345
Restructuring costs 644 -
Aborted acquisiiion <osts 02
Earnings for the purposes of adjusted earnings per share 4,168 4,079
Fffect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
Interest on loan nores {net of tax) 57 23
Interest on convernble redeemable preference shares 204 446
Larnmps for the purposes of diluted carmngs por share 4429 4 34y
" 2004
REERIN ?L nue
Basic 22 1p 227p
Dilused 20 8p 21 2p
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Notes ro the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2005

e GOODWILL

{000
Cost
At Januarv 1, 2004 3,071
Lxchange differences {141
Recogmsed on acqustiion of subsidiaries 4 802
At December 31 2004 and Januvary 1, 2005 7732
[xchange differences 460
Recogrised on acqusinon of subsidiary (note 27) 2051
Recognsed on the acquisizon of a minority shareholding 74
At December 31, 2009 10317
Carrying amount
At December 31, 2005 10,317
At December 31, 2004 7,732
Ar January 1, 2004 3,071
Impairment tests for cash generanng umits contaming goodwill
Uhe followmg unies have sigatficant carrying amounts of goodwill
EStITE] 2004
(I L0090
Pl 3,762 3389
Premier 2,115 -
Marshall 1,861 1,861
Others 2,579 2,482
10,3117 7,732

“I've recoverable amount of each vish generating unit ts based on valee in vse basis  Those caleulations use vash fow

projetions based on atual oporatng resules and budpeced results Cash flows for 1 pertod of 20 vears arc

entrapolated using 1 2% growth rare

LR N

Y

S

N

9




Notes to the Accounts Year endig December 31, 2003

12 OTHER INTANGIS F ASSETS

Cost
At January 1, 2004
Fxchange differences

Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries

Ar December 31, 2004 and January 1, 2003

Exchange diffcrences

Acquired on acqsiion of subsidiarv {note 27)

Ar December 31, 2005

Amortisation
At January I, 2004
Lxchange differences

Charge for the yar

At December 31, 2004 and |anuary 1, 2005
Exchange differences

Chrrge for the year

At December 31, 2005

Carrying Amount
At December 31, 2005

At December 31, 2004

Ar january 1, 2004

~Non
Conrrctual
Reltnonships Backhists Loral
L0000 {000 £00D
339 139
- [254) {254
3,810 Shl
5,895 3,893
10 602 612
385 - 385
395 6497 A RY2
- 73 73
- [PEN) 20
- 309 309
- 561 561
1 107 108
174 1,207 1 381
173 1,875 20340
220 4,622 4,842
- § 334 §334
- 266 2h6
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2005

13 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plans
Fquipment Fintures
Freehold Leasehold  and Mocor and
Property Property Vehicles Fitnings loral
£000 £000 £000 L000 L000

Group
Cost o valuanon
At Januany 1, 2004 5,200 RO2 6,839 883 13744
Fxchange ditterences (48) (42) {151) {38) {279)
Addions 128 253 377 262 1020
Subsidiaries acquired - 79 130 52 261
Duiposils - (5) (316) {162) {483)
At December 31, 2004 and January 1, 2005 5,280 1,087 6,899 997 14,263
Exchang. differences 80 69 249 66 464
Addinons b 39 415 171 678
Suhsidraries acquued - 4 28 5 14
Disposals {4) 1262) {1 448) - {1,714}
At December 31, 2005 5,359 987 6,140 1,239 13,725
Bepreciation
At January 1, 2004 167 449 3757 462 4,835
Exchange differcnces (5} (15} (133 (28} (18N
Charge for che year 67 85 620 23 | 073
hisposals - {$) (280} (161) (4401
At December 31, 2004 and January 1, 2005 229 514 4,034 504 5281
Exchanr = differences § 29 233 270
Charge for the year 62 106 690 209 1,067
Disposals (4] (217) (1,208) - {1,426)
At December 31 2005 293 432 3,752 713 5,192
Net hook value
At December 31, 2005 5,064 555 2 388 326 8,533
At December 31, 2004 5,051 573 2,865 493 §,982

the net hook value of plant cquipment and motor vehides included £1,152 000 (2004 £1,485 000} m respect of wees hedd under b
purchase connacs  The deprecianon charged on these assets dunng the year was £i68 000 (2004 £241,000) Induded w1 leasehold
propert At cost s £328,000 (2004 £294,000} m respect of 2 long leasehold properts the net book value was £230 000 (2004 £213 000

T he total Lost of freehold property comprises £3 103,000 in respect of buildings 1nd £2,256,000 i respect of land  \ frechold
property, with a net book value ot £1,663,000, i secured against a mor age

As stated 1n the accounnng policy note on page 55, che Directors have chosen to hold the cost of frechold proportes a provions
valuations on ransition to internanional Finanaal Reporung Standards  The cost of frechold proporey held ac provious valuations
comprises butldings of £1 93,000 and land of £1,321,000  The pnnapal trechold properts inthe UK with v historwat cost ot
£382,000, was revalued on the basts of an open marker value for exisung use at December 31, 1989 by Conw v kersh independent
Professional Valuers The valuanon was £1 7 midlion but che Dhirectors ascribed a value of £1 4 mellion on the grounds ot

prudence The valvation was in accordance with RICS Statements of Asser Valuaton Pracuce and Guidance Nores
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending, December 31, 2003

14 SUBSIDIARIES
A list of the sigmificant investments i subsidiaries mctuding the name country of incorporation and propornon of
ownership wterest 1s given in note § to the company s separite financial statements All ot these subwidiines are included

in the consclidated results

15 INVENTORIES

2004
' £a00
Fimished goods 16,169 14,313
Woik in progress 6,763 6,262
Raw materials 932 351
Lews Payments on account {239) {290)
23521 2638

i6 TRADE AND OTHLR RECEIVABLEY
M 2004
et £000
Tade recervables 25,513 21347
Orher receivables and prepay ments 2,417 1 969
Eair value ot derivanves 4359 130
28,399 23040

1 he average credic period on sales of goods 1s 76 davs (2004 85 days)  An allowance has been mate for wsamaid
srrecorcrable amounts from the sale of goods of £967,000 (2004 £970,000) s allowanee hats been deermned by

1eterenee to past defeule cxperience
The Directors consider thar the carrying amoune of tade and orher recervables approsmmates to therr tur value

Credut nsk
The group’s prancipal financial assers are bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables which represent the groups

maxomum exposure o ceedit nish 1 relation 0 finanaal assets

Ihe group's credit sk 15 primanly actnbuzable o us nade receavables 1he imounts presented m the halance sheeare
net of illowances for doubtful recervables, estmated by the groups management based on pror experence ind the

Assussment of the current economic environment

The credit risk on hqud funds and derivauve financial mstruments 1s hmited bectuse the counterparies are banks with
high credic-ratings assigned by internauonal eredit ratng agencies

1he group has no sigmficant concntranon of credit rish, with exposure spre ad over 1 large numba of counterpatnes

andd customers
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2003

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2004
L0

9,730
2,848

12,578
{1 967)

10601

2004
£000

36,035
1,719

37,734
654

38,408

2101
Yy
16,223
537

39,895

(2101)

LR
s
Bank balances 10,408
Shore term deposus 4023
14431
Bank overdrate {(note 22) (2,532)
Cash and cash equivalents fo1 cash flow statement 11,899
The carrying amount of these assets approanmates their fair value
1he chtective interest tates on baok balinies and short torm deposis was 2 9% (2004 | 9%)
18 MEDIUM AND LONG TERM LOANS
2
ion
Bank loans 44 164
Loan note {note 22) 960
45124
Obligations under finance leases {see Note 21) 473
45 599
The bortowings {excludimg obligations under finance leascs) are repay able as follows
(O demand or within one yoar 3,621
In the sceond year 43,339
n the thud o hiteh vears inclusive 1,362
Alter five years 403
48,745§
less Amount due tor settlement within 12 months
{shown under current habilines) 3621)
Amount due for serclement &fter 12 months 45,124

37,734
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2005
18 MeDIL M AND LONG TERM LOANS rontvied]
Werghted  Average ninu

AVLT1RE aver which

fived rate Varable rite  inrerest rite nterest rare

foral  boirrowings  barrowsngs  tor fised ite 1y fined

L000 L0000 LO00 benrowings o Manths
US dollar borrowings 34,424 19,355 15,069 4 4% 19
Other currency borrowings 14,321 - 14,321 % -
As ar December 31, 2005 48 74% 19,355 29,190 4 4% 19
US dollar borrowings 30,075 17 344 12,731 4 4% 32
Othier currcney borrowings 9,780 - 9,780 A
As at December 31, 2004 39,845 17,344 22511 4 4% 32

[ he variable rate borrowings buar inrciest by reterenee to LIBOR plus a margin
At Dcocember 31, 20038, undrawn borroweng tauliues totaled 416 163,000 (2004 £3322,000)

{he Directors esumate the fair value of the group’s borowings to be equil to book value , by reference to marha

rates

The above borrowngs carey imterest at commeroial rates ranging from § 3% 0 8 5% Ot the total bortowings

£34 424,600 (2004 £30 073,000} was denomun  ed 1n US dollars, the remainder bioing denommated i a varty ol
wurrinues Bank loans include £1,074,000 (2004 £ 1,208,000) which 1s seeured on v trechold propaty, with a carmving
value of £1,669,000 (2004 £1,686,000) All other bank loans arc atseeured  Lhe lvan note 1 USS3,300,000 and 1
converuble mto 1,074,288 shares of common stock  Of the rotal loan note, U4% 1,650,000 15 repayable on August 4,
2006 and U551,6 50,000 15 repayable on August 4, 2008

The Group has a US§90m (2004 USS60m) syndicated bank trshry which expires on Julv 15 2007 ind 1 £4m
facilits which expures on [une 10, 2007 [ hese fachinies ace subject to three prmap il covenants, calculated 1w

accaordance with UK GAAPD, namely

ta) Total Lonsolidated ner indebredness shall not exceed 3 33 nmus EBLIDA (the consohdared operatng prufic before
depreaation, amornzation exceptional iems and development costs {production costs cadluding pumting) charged to
the profit and loss but not paid in cash in the year) This measure amounted to £16 269,000 giving a maximum
indebtedness of £54,175,770

() The consolidated operanng profis before exceprional iems and goodwill amornsnion shall exceed thiee nmes
nev inferest payable For the vear ended December 31, 2005, not interest pavible was 4 33 times covired under

this covenant

(¢} Lhe consohdated operanng profit before goodwill amernzauon shall uneeed 15 umes net inrerest payable fot
the year ended December 31, 2003, ner wnterest payable was 3 96 umes covered under this covenant
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2005

19 DERIVATIVE FENANCHA INSTRUMENTS

The group uses derrvacive financial instruments to hedge 1ts ¢xposure to interest rate nisks ansing from tinanemg

acovines

Interest rate swaps

1he group uses INELLSE TALC SWaPs 1O MANJEE 115 CXPOSUIC L0 INLLILSE Fale MOVEMLOLs oM it bank borrowings
Contracss with nomnal values of $30,000,000 have hxed mrerest pavments at an average rate of 4 4% for periods
ap untt July 15, 2007 The msorument meers 1AS 39 s hedge accounting crireria and the instrument 15 carued at farr

value £459.000 (2004 £130,000) at cach reporung date, with any gain or loss being recogmised i equrry

20 DEFERRED TAX

The following ate the major defurred tax halbiliues and assets recogmsed by the group nd movements thervon during

the current and prior reporting perod

Deferred tananion provided in the financial statements s as follows
Excess of capital allowances over depreciation - UK

Provision on property revaluanon — UK

Other uming differcnees — UK

Intaneible assers = US
Provisions = US
Other overseas nnimg ditferences

Deferred taxanon assets
Other uming differences — Other overseas

Nut diferred taxatnion Lhability

[ he movement on the net provision for deferred taxanion 15 as follows

Ner provision at Janoary 1

Lxchange difference through resenves
Acquisinons

Credie to ncome and expendiure account

Net provision at December 31

Amount Provided

BULE 2004
fgon £000
244 227
187 290
(i16) ("0}
415 447
{627) (232)
867 399
I3 16
[ 630
25 4
643 626

Amount Provided

PO 2004
0 L0009
626 942
19 (15s)

7 (29)
(9) {272)
643 626

At the balance sheet dace, the group has unused tax losses of £2,329.000 (2004 £2,090,000) availably tor oftset
apasnst turure profus A deferred tax asset has not been recopmised 1 respeet of such losses, dud o the

unpredictabilicy of future profit streams

arnes
e

6O
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2005

20 DEFERRED TAX (contmued)

Included tn unrecognesed tax losses are losses of £1,391,000 (2004 £1.365.000) that will expne in the tollow:ng veirs

i 004
Lun L0060
Year ending Decermber 31

2007 - 30
2008 227 234
2009 796 780
2010 37 Y
2011 272 289
2012 97 -

1 391 1,365

Other losses may be carried forward definmety

At the balance sheet date, the 1ggregace amount of temporary diffcrences assoctited with undiseribured carmmas ot
subsidianes for which deferred cax habuines have not been recogmsed was £1,257,000 (2004 £1026,000% No habihny

has been recognised in respect ot these difterences because the group 15 10 a posttion vontrol the nming of the revers

of the temporary differences and 1 15 probable that such differences will not reverse 1n the foresecible furure

21 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Amounts pavable under finance leases
Withuin onu year
In the second to Bifth years inc'osive

I ess future hinance charges

Less Amount due for sectlement within
12 months (shown under current habiines)

Amount duc for scetlement after 12 months

Minmmum [ose paymonts

2ond

e 1000
146 viy
546 7449
892 I Ubn

{106) {1
786 953

3in (29%9)
475 634

It s the group’s policy to lease certain of ws plant, equipment ind motor vehicles under finance Jcases o the vear
ended December 31, 2005, the average effecave boniowing 1ite was 6 2% (2004 6 6%) Inrerest rites 1re fived a0 the

contrace date All leases are on a fixed repavment basts and no 1eangements have been entered into for conmungent

rental pavments Al lease obligauons are denommated in sterling

1he fair v lue of the group s lease obligations approximates 1o thair carrying amount

Fhe group’s obligations under finance leases are seeured by the lessors charges over the leased assets




Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2005
71 SHORT T-RM PORRGWINGS

MUY 2004

¢ 3ap L0000

Current loan instalments 134 134
Loan note 955 -
Bank overdrafts 2,932 I 967
Borrowings (note 18) 31621 21061
Finance lease obligations (note 21) 314 299
Redeemable preference shares - 4 850
3,932 7,250

US$1,650,000 of the U5$3,300,000 loan note 15 due on August 4, 2006 1he U$53,300,000 loan note 1s convernble

into 1,074,288 chares of common stock
2,947 232 redeemable preterence shares were converted inm shares of comman stock on June §, 2009 1 a e of 60
shares of common stock tor everv 100 shares of prefersed stock  The remamning 2 255,272 shates were redeemed at

par on December 31, 2005

1he careving amount of these liabilities approximates to thur fai value

he cfteetive interest rate on the bank overdeafts was 5 5% (2004 5 3%)
23 TRAOR AND O7iikk PAYABLES
2y 2004
thn L000
irade payibles 22,486 20778
Other payables 4,307 4,219
26,793 24,99%

The average credit peniod for trade purchases 15 100 davs (2004 107 days) The Directors consider thit the carrving

amoun of trade payables approximates to thetr fair value
14 SHIARFE CAPTAL
Authortsed

28,000,000 {2004 28,000 000) shares of commen stock of par value US$0 10 each (“shases of common stock ') wach
an aggiegate nominal value of US$2,800,000 (2004 1S$52,800,000)

Wi 2004
Tty £000
Lquity share capueal
Allowed, called up and tuily paid
Shares of common stock of par vatue US$0 10 each
20 444,550 (2004 18,676,206) 4162 1,063

The Company has one class of common stock which carty no night to fix.Jd income  The change n issued shre capital
during the vear resulted from the conversion of 2,947,252 shares of preterred stock nto 1,768 344 shares of common stock

PR
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Notes to the Accounts Year endimg December 51, 200

25 RETAINED SARNINGS AN OIHER RESzAVES
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2005

76 RETAINED EARNINGS AND OTHER RESERVES

Revaluation reserve

Ihe revaluanion reserve relares to the revaiuinion of frechold property in a previous vear

Hedging reserve
[ledging reserve comprises the ¢freenve pornon of the cumulause net change the fair valuc ot cash How hadging,

inscruments related to hedged transactnions char have not yer occurred

Translation reserve

The translanion reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences ansing from the translanon of che tmananl
statem nts of foreign operations of the Company since January 1 2004 as well as from rthe translanon of Labilines
which hedge the Company s net tnvestment in a foreign substdiary

Ircasury stouk
Treasury stock represents the Company’s purchase of s own shares The Company owns 886,321 (2004 714,000),
represenning 4 3% (2004 3 8%) of us shares of common stock and none (2004 330,000} ot s shares of prefornd

stock The changes duning the vear were

4 Issue of shares i sausfaciien of options exercised during the course of the vear 20 000 on March 21, 2003 and
5,000 on Aprd 19, 2005

b Acqusiiion of 198,000 shares following the converston of the Company s pruferred stock holding

¢ Sale of 679 shares on Dewember 30, 2005

Jun 2004

Dividends e Lhon
Amounts recogmsed as distributions to «quity holders in the pettod

Interim duvidend for the yeir ended December 31 2005 of 2 9p (2004 2 75p) per share 367 494

1 ma! dividend for che vear ended December 31, 2004 of 3 5p {2004 3 25p) per share 630 383

1,197 1,077

Proposed tinal dividend for the vear ended December 31, 2005 of 36p (2004 3 §p) per share 736 £29

736 629

Lhe proposcd final dividend 15 subjeet w approval by sharcholders at the Aanual General Metting and has not beun

inchuded as a habiliey i these finanaal starements

F‘f.




Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2005

17 ACQUASITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On Mav &, 2005, the group acquired 70% of the issued share capual of Premuer Books 1imited, New Zealand

leading display marketing books business, for a cash consideranion of NZ$5,600,000 (£2 153,846) This rransction

has been avcounted for by the purchase methed of accounting

Net assets acquired
Intangibles

Property, plant and equipment
Inventories

{rade and other reccivables
Cash and cash cquevalenes
Trade and other payables
Corporation tax

Minority interest

Goodwill

Lotal consideration

Sacisfied by
Cash
Acquisition coss

Nt cash outflow ansing on augquisition
Cash consideration

Cash and cash equivalents acquued

Book Fair value Far
Value  vdjusemunts vt
£000 £000 £000
i8S 3RS

33 34
893 (61) N2
3 i 5
($13) - (513)
(426) {10) {436)
17 {7)

3 §92) (49)

(6} 218 209
2051

2260

2154

6

2. 261}

2, 26i}

i3

2773

If the acquisition of Preimier Books ! imited had been completed on the fust day of the finananl ven group revenues

for the period would have been £96,2 14,000 uud group protit atcributable to equity holders of the parent wauld hine

been £2,489,000 1he profit of Premier Books Limited since acquisition which has becn meluded 1 the group profu

for the puriod was £346,000

Cash flow on other acqusitions durmg the vear amounced to £74,000
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2008

27 OACQUISTT ON O SUBNMDIARES (Lantiausm

Acquisitions in 2004 comprised Creative Publishing internanional on Avgust 4, 2004 and majonn

shareheldings 1n Aurum Press Lumited on July 28, 2004 and Lifenime Distrnibutors “The Book People P

Limited on November 12, 2004

These acquisitions were accounted for by the purchasc method of accounting as follows

Intangibles

Property, plant and equipment
Invenwories

Irade ind other receivables
Cash and cash equivelanes
Trade and other payables
Deterred rax

Minonity inrerest

Coodwill

Total consideration

Sanshed by
Cash

Loan note
Acquisition costs

Ner wash outflow in 2004 on acgqusinons comprised
Cash conwderation
Cash and cash equinalents acquired

Deterred consideration 1 respecr of prior period 1cquisitions

Boak
Value
£Q00

309
9,397
5,271

(5.663)
{4,090)

(264)

4,960

Accounting
Policy
Adjustments
000

{4,266)
(589)

4,855)

Tair value Fair
Adjusemenry Value
LODD LOun
5,610 5810
{48) 261
{1,628} 3,503
(771 1,911

- (5,663%)

{429) {4,519
23 23

3% {129}
3,092 3,197
4,802

7 999

5.660

1,803

36

7949

7,999

5,661

38

13,700

L S
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Notes to the Acceunts Year endimg December 31, 2005

78 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Additions ta property, plant and equipment during the year amounnng to £147.000 (2004 Lo} were timanted by new

ftnance leases

Cash and cash equnalents (which are presenied as a single class of assers on the face of the balinue sheet) comprise cish

at bank and othcr short-term haghly ltqud tnvestments with a marurity of three months or less

1% CONEINGENT LIABILITIES

The Quarto Group, Inc has 1ssued guarantees in respect nf 42 532,000 of overdrafes of subsiditries (2004 £1,967 000

and bank loans of £45,253,000 (2004 £36,169,000) The Group has also 1ssued guarantees in respect ot £786,000
(2004 £953,000) of hire purchase creditors and 4 loan note of subsidiaries £1 914,000 (2004 £1,714,000) Fhere are

other contngent Liabilities, ansing in the ordinary course of business, in respect of hugauon, which the Direciors belwove

will not have a significant effeet on the financal position of the Group

10 OPERATING LFASE ARRANGEMENTS AND GTHRR TiNaANCIA LG A «
2y 2004
Lot L0ae
Minumum lease payments under operanng keases
i 682 1415

recognised tnincome for the year

At the balance sheet date, the group had outstanding commitments for fucure mmumum lease prymenis sder non-

cancellable operating leases, which .M due as tallows

b0~ 2004

aof A L0014

Within one vear 1251 1121
I the sevond ro fikth vears inclusive 2737 2972
After tive vears 21 inl
4,009 4,255

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group, primacily for uts office properuies

Capital commiutments at the vear end for which no provision had been made was £148 000 (2004 £nl)
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2005

31 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-sertled share opuon plan

The group plan provides for a grane price equal to the average quoted market price of the group shares on the date of gran:
The vesung period 1s generally 3 yesrs If the options remamn unexercised after 1 period of 7 to10 vears from the die of
grans, the options cxpire 1 urthermore, opuons arc forfeured if the umployec leaves the group bifure the options vest

2 2004

Weestnnd Wogheod

BCtaRe 1verige

AR TCEb LXLILse

AU Bric 2004 price

Opians (ra &> Options fun £)

Outstanding 2t buginneng of period 310,000 106 259,500 087
Granted duning the pernod - - 80,500 163
Exerused during the peniod 25,000 072 26,000 I 02
Faprred during the period 19,500 099 4,000 083
Ourstanding at the end of the period 265,500 109 310,000 106
Lxerusable ar the end of the period 118,500 09 100,500 094

1he options outstanding 4t December 31, 2005 had 4 weghted avurdge romatning contractual life of § 2 vears

The fair value of services recerved tn return for share oprions granted are measured by reference to the fair value of
share options granted  The esumare of the fair value of the share opnions s measutred based on a binomial latnee
model  The contractual life of the opaon (7 to 10 years) 15 used 15 an nput nto this model  Fypecranons ot ek

excruse ace vorporated into the binomial latnce model

L000

batr value at measurcment date 26

She prices £0315/£1 615

Fxercise prices £0 83/£1 83
Eapested volauliry (eapressed as weighted average volanliny used

i the modelling under binomial lattuce model) 20%

Rusk free raw {based on nanional government bonds) 3 75%M4 75%

The expected dividend 15 based on the assumpuon that the Company’s past dividend policy will contnue

The expected volanhrv 1s based on the histaric volanluy {calulited based on the weighted average remaming hfe of
share aprions) adjusted for any expected changes to tuture volanluy due to pubiicly 1vailable informanon

Share options are granted under 1 scovice condition and 1 non-marker perturmance condien  Such conditions ar
not taken 1nto account tn the grant date fair value measurement of the scevices recuved - Oprions are wxraasablon
there has buen an merease w1 the Company s varnings per share of at least 2% pur annum above the prowth i the

retail prices index over a penod of three years

The Group recogmsed total expenses of £9,000 and £4,000 related to equity —setrled share-bwsed payment
transactions in 2005 and 2004 respecuvely




Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2003

31 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS {cotnucd:

At December 31, 2005, the following share oprions over shares of common stk were outstinding under the
Company’s Executive Share Option Schemes

Number of shares Date vxercisable Qption price por share
7,000 March 31, 2001- March 30, 2008 L0685
23.000 February 22, 2003 - February 21, 2007 £1 115
28,000 February 22, 2003 - Fcbruary 21, 2010 {1119
22 500 March 29, 2004 - March 28, 2011 £O 825
11000 Febiuary 15, 2005 -February 14, 2009 £0 67
12,000 Februirs 13, 20035 -Ycbruary 14, 2012 L0 6?7
11,100 February 26, 2005 —kebruary 25, 2009 f0 775
3,900 tebruary 26 20035 -l cbruars 25, 2012 £0 775
33000 tebruary 14, 2006 -Lebruary 13, 2010 £0 83
37,500 February 14 2006 ~Fchruary 13, 2013 083
42,686 Seprember 30, 2007 - Septumbu 29 2011] £163
33,814 September 30 2007 — September 29, 2014 £163

37 REMUNELRATION OF KEY MANAGLMENT PERSONNEL

{he remunerauon of the directors, whe e the key management personndd of the group, 15 stt out below v agprigac
for cach ot the categones speatfied in 1AS 24 Redated Partv Disclosures  Purther informanion a1bour the comuner wion

of individual directors 14 provided in the andited part of the Puectors’ Remuneranon Report on papes 44 10 45

- @ 2004

‘o L00s)

Short term employee benefits 859 782

33 [MRECHIORS TRANSACTIONS

During the year R | Morlev mamtamed 1 current account with the Group [he debur balance un this actount was
less than £5,000 throughout the year The balance at the vear end was £1.700 (2004 £3,300) Durning the yeu 11
Orbach loaned money to the Group and has carned an arm’s lengrh recurn of 4% Ihe wotal amount of mrerest
carned during the year was £3,000 (2004 £4,000) The balance outstanding ar the beginning of the vear was
£94,000, and the balance art the end of the year, which was alse the highest amount ousstanding was £ 147,000
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2005

34 EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TOQ IFRSs

Notes to the reconchaton of equity at January 1, 2004
The analysis below sets out the most sigmficant adjustments arising from the transinon to IFRS

Reconuhation of equity at January 1, 2004 (date of transition to 1FRSs)

Lier of

ransition
Uk GAAP o TFRSS TERS,
LOOO LHID 006
Property, plant and equipment 3,209 - 5909
Goodwill 3,337 (266) 3071
Intangible assets - 266 266
Total non-current 1ssees 12,246 - 12,246
Trade and other receivables 20,667 (103} 20,564
Inventories 17,451 13 17,484
laxasien recoverible 94 - 94
Cash and cash equivalents 12 490 - 12,490
lotal current assets 50,702 {70) 50,632
Total as-ets 62,948 (70) 621 878
Short terin boriowings (528) - 1528)
[radc and other payables (23,0211 439 {22 582)
Corporanon tax liabihiones (8438 - (348)
{24,397) 439 {23 938)
Nt vurrent assots 26,305 RIS 26,674
[oral zssets less toral habihtes 38,951 369 g 920
Medwm and long terin boirowings {29,349} {H83%5) (34 184)
Qther payables {239 - (239}
Deferred rax labilicy {873} {67} (942}
(30,463} (4,902) (39,3653)
Toral habilitses (54,860} {4,46 %) (59,323}
Nit assets 8,088 {4,333} 3,535
[ssued capucal 1,341 {278) 1,063
Share premwm account 23,893 (4.709) 19,184
Recained earnings and other reserves (19,582} 454 (19,128)
Lquaty sharcholders’ funds 5,652 (4.533) 1,119
Minoniy interest 2436 - 2434
Total equty and habthries §088 (4.53%) 35355

The adjustments refating to the balance sheet as ar Jantuary 1, 2004 are described below

74
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Praperty, plant and equipment
Goodwill
ntangible assers

Deferred tax

[otal non-current assets
Irade and other receivables
laventaries

Taxaton recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets
Toral assets

Short term borrowings
Trade and other pavables
Corporauon tax liabilities

Net current assers

Medwnt and long term borrowings
Ocher payables
Deferred tax habidity

Toral habihities

Ner assets

Issued capisal
Share premium account

Retaned eanmings and other reserves

Lquuy sharcholders funds
Minonty inrorest

Total equuzy and habilines

Reconcihanon of equitv at December 31, 2004 {date of last UK GAAP finanual statements}

Fifect ot

[ransipioen

Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2005

34 EXPLANATION QF TRANSITION TG FRS%s {cantinued)

UK GAAP 1o 1E Rss [R5,
£000 £000 £000
8,982 - 8,982

12,773 ($041) 7,732
232 5,102 5,134

4 4
21991 61 22032
24,066 {420) 23,646
20727 (49 20638
154 - 154

12 578 - 12 578
57.52% {509) 7016
79516 {448) 79 0A8
{2,400 {4,850} (7 250)
(15 377% 382 {24 493
{1,304} 11,304)
{29,081) 4,468} (35,344
28,444 14,977) 23467
(38,408) - (38,405}
(210 - (2103
(650) 20 630y
{39 2648) RO {3y 244)
(68.349) 14 448) 79 797)
11 167 {4 8%6) 6271

I 341 (278 1063
23 903 (4 704) 19,199
(16 797) 119 [1h 678)
b 147 {4 8BA3) 3,954
27 (3%) 1687
11,167 {4,846) 6,271
(79,516) 448 179,068)




Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2005

14 BXPLANATION JF 1AM DN D ekis soont 10

The transiienal intormation s as previously published except that
I p p

Overdrafts of £35,000 at Januarv 1, 2004 and £1,967,000 at December 31, 2004 have been reclassified from cash

to short rerm borrowings, and

¢ Muanagement have reassessed the fair value of the assers acquired 10 the acguisitions made 12 2004 Lhas has
resulted 1n the following movements in the balance sheer at December 31, 2004
«  An increase of £488,000 in goodwill

A decrease of £225,000 in inventory

A decrease of £230,000 in receivables

An increase of 166,000 1 creditors

[ = B = B o

A decrease of £33,000 m mmnority interest

When prepanng the Group's IERS balance sheet ar Janwary 1, 2004, the date of transiton the follewing optional
exemptions, provided by IFRS 1 First-me Adopuion of Intcinarional Finanoal Reporang Standaids trom full

retrospective application of I RS accounting policies, have been adopred

» Business combinations — the provisions of [FRS 3 have been applied from January 1,2004  The net carrving vilue of
goodwll at December 31, 2003 under the previous accounting policies has been deemed 1o be che cost at January 1 2004,
s Cumulatne translation ditferences ansing on conschdaton of subsidiaries — [AS 21 requires differences to be held
1 1 separate reserve rather than included i the profit and loss reserve under UK GAAP  Lhis reserve has been

deessed to be nil on January 1, 2004

[AS 38, “Intangible Assers” requires that goodwill 15 not amortized Instead it s subgecr o an annual impdirment
teview A perrmueed, the group has eleced nor o apply 1FRS 3 ren spocovedy to busingss combimanons poo to the
apemng balance sheer date under IFRS Consequently, the UK GAAP goodwill has been included in the opeming IFRS
consohdated balance sheer ar the cariying value as at December 31, 2003 {£3,071,000) and 15 no longer amornzed
£266,000 of separately acquired backlists, previously included within goedwill, have been presented as separate
intangible assers and will continue to be amornzed over their useful exonomue hife

Ihe goodwill amornzanon n che yeal o December 31, 2004 of £376,000 under UK GAAP has baenteversed The
amoriizanon of intangibles under UK GAAP 1n the vear o December 31, 2004 of £34,000 remains m the Hinanaal

sragements under 1FRS

The group made three acquisinons of businesses during 2004 These acquisitions included the purchase of tote-fived
intangible assets not previously recogmsed under UK GAAP Under IFRS, these intangible assets are reclassified from

goodwill, and amortized over their useful econome Lives

Lhe reclassified mtangible assets are bang amortized over various peiods not exceeding Hs ¢ years, dopundeng ant
then nature, the corresponding 1mortization chaige tor the teclassihied inrangible assets tor the year to December 311,
2004 was £475,000

The balance sheet rectassification of goodwill to ntangibles anising from 2004 acquisitions as at December 31 2004
was £5,810,000

Under 1AS 21, goodwill and ntangibles are carned in the currenes of the acquired company I he bafance shiet value
of goodwill ar Devember 31, 2004 has been reduced by £141,000 and the balanc, shet vatue of mangibles at
December 31, 2004 has been reduced by £233,000

Employee Benefits
IAS 19 requires short term accumulating benefies such as hohday pay entitlemens and sich pav to be accrued over the

pertod in which the enntlement 15 earned

The addiional lability n the balance sheer at December 31, 2004 1s £205,000
1 he impace on profic before tax for the year to December 31, 2004 1s a charge of £50 000

iy

wey e

(R )



Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2005

34 PXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO 1t RS rontinued)

Dividends

{AS 10, “Events afcer the Balance Sheet Date” requires that dividends declared after the balance sheer date should
not be recognised as a hability at thac balance sheer date as they do not represent a present obligation as defined by
1AS 37 * Prowisions, Conungent Liabilines and Conningent Assers”

Under [FRS, dividends are shown as 1 deduction from reseries theretore the income statemone no fonger shows the

deducron of dividends

The final dividend in the 2004 UK GAAP firancial statemencs i relanon to the financral year ended December 31
2004 of £629 000 has been reversed 1n the balance sheet at December 31 2004

Deferred and Current Taxes
IAS 12 “Income laxes’ ruquures that deferred tax assets and habilines are caleulawd by reforence to wumporan

differunces, the ditference between the carmying amount of an asser and s tax base

Deferred tax on US Goodwill
Goodwill from the acquisition of US businesses previeusly written off to reserves under UK GAAT 15 deducuble tor
US rax purposes, the tax balance carried forward under 1AS 12 gives rise to 1 deferred tax asser

At December 31, 2004 a diferred tax asser of £128,000 has been recogmised under [FRS which partally offscis Us
deferred tax habihities

The impact on the income statement tor the year 1o December 31, 2004 & ro merease the tix ospense by £ 1000

Deferred tax on revalued asset
A defeired rax hability has been established wirh regard to the propeity revaluanion At December 31 2004, chus
amounted 10 £290 000

Lhe impact on the income statement for the vear w Decomber 31 2004 1 to reduce the crx ovpense by £3 000

Other tax adjustmenes
I he non-tax 1L RS adjusements nuthined elsewhere wathin this document have boon ras eitecoed w ar Docambea 31 2004

Financial Instruments
1AS 32, “Financial lnstruments Disclosure and Presenration™ and 145 39 * Hancad Instruments Recogminion and
Measurement™ address the 1ccounung for, and reporung of financial instruments 1AS 39 sets out detailed

accountng requircments (n refaton 1o financial assets and habihities

All dervanve tinanaal mstrumencs are accounted for at fair value whilst other finanonl insuumonts are aeeouncod
for either ar amortized vost or at far value depending on their lassificanion Subjecr to stnngent critera, financaal
assets and financial habthnies mav be designared as forming hedge relanionships as 3 1esult of which fair value
changes are offset 1n the income statement or charged/credited o equery depending on the nature of the hedge
relationship

Quarto has three types of finanewal instrumenr that are impacted by EAS 32 indd [AS 39, as tollows

Imntcrest rate swap

[n ordce to provide a hedge against changes ininterest rawes, the group has tken our an nserest rate swap to swap
vanable to fixed rates on USS 30 million ot borrowings [he swap was tahen out in 2004 and thar s why it hasno
effect on the January 1, 2004 equicy reconabanon

Under [AS 39, the graup has designated the inzerest rate swap as 1 cish flow hedge of ws interest cost on the horrowings
concerned, and the direcrors have determined chat the hedge was effective 1n the vorr ended eeember 31, 2004
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2005

34 EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TQ iFRSs {conun 10d)

The impact of recogmising this mstrumenc ar fair value on the balance sheet as ar Pecember 31, 2004 15 an mcrease in
net 1ssets of £130,000, with o corresponding adjustmens in the hedging reserses

Preference shares | Convertible loan note

1hese two financial instruments have buen recogmsed / presented mn che financial statemunes under IAS 32 1he impace
of IAS 32 1s to recogmse a sigmfrwant poraon of the preference shares as a hability and o recognise an dument of the
convertible Joan note as equuty 1 accordance with the nighes arcaching ro those instruments

The impact of recognising these instruments, v aceordance with 145 32, on the balance sheet 15 to increase short term
borrowings by £4,850,000 to reduce share capual by £278,000, to reduce the share premunm account by £4,704 000
and to increase retained earmengs by £132,000

I he impact on the meome starement for the year to December 31, 2004 15 to merease the mrerest charge by £446 000
Other
The impact of ather IFRS requirements, primanly the calcuitnon of deferced tax on elimimated inter-comp iy profit,

has been mimmal

In the income statement at December 31, 2004, other IFRS requiremenis led 1o a reducuon in profit before t1v of £34,000
and £24,000 in profit afrer tax  In the balance sheet at Decamber 31, 2004, net asscts were reduced by £67 000

Reconaliation of profit or loss for 2004

Effecr of

rinsition
UK GAAP o IFRSs iFRSs
L0O0O £000 £000
Revenue 79,815 {85} 79 7350
Cust of sales 130,931} 51 (S0,580)
Cross profit 28,904 {34} 26 A7
Operating vosts {21,710} {153) (21,863)
Operaning profic 7,194 (187) 7,007
Finance income 65 - 6s
Finanye costs {1.234) (446) {1.680)
Profit before tax 6,025 (633) 5,392
lax enpense {1337) 82 {1,233)
Ner profitf(loss) 4,688 {531) 4137

Notes to the reconcihation of profit or loss for 2004

Share Based Payments
IFRS 2, “Share-based Payment™ requires that an expense for share options granted be tecogused in che financial
statements based on their fair value at the date of grant This «xpense 1s recogrused over the vesung period of the options

Lhe group has measured this expense tor oprons graneed after November 7, 2002, that had not vestud at January 1
2005, in accordanee wach the exempoion pernutced under IFRS 1 Quarto has used a binomuat model tor che purposcs

of compuung tair value

The charge to the income statement for the vear to December 31, 2004 was £4 000

i
»

As thus transaction s seriled in equity, rather chan cash, the chirge to the income statement 1s mitched by a

Fwora
‘.
2

vorresponding increase 1 equity and there 1s cheretore a nee ml ebfect on the balanct she

-y
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Notes to the Accounts Year ending December 31, 2005

34 EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO IFRSs (continued)

Explanaton of matenial adjustments to the cash flow statement for 2004

f et ol
T insrion
UK ¢Aaar to IERSs [ 1
00 LOAO0 L0
Cash flows from operating activittes
Profit for the period 4,688 {351) 4,137
Tax expense 1,337 {R2} 1,25%
Net finance costs 1,169 446 1,613
Deprectation 1,073 - 107%
Amornzation 410 99 304
Profic on sale of tangible fixed assers () - tn
Lquity scttled share-based payment cxpense - 4 4
Operating profit before changes in working capital
and provistons 8 676 44) § 392
Decrease in trade and other receivables 215 86 314
Inerease 1n inventories (675) 47 (722}
Decrease i tende and other payables (1,713} 43 REGH
Corporanion tax paid {1,062} (1 062)
Net cash flow from operanng actiy 1es 5,441 - 5441
Cash flow from investing actuiviues
Purchase of tangible fixed assets {1020) - (1420)
Proceeds from sale of tangible hxed assers 18 38
Purchast of subsidiary undertakings {13,700} {13 700)
Interest recerved 51 - S
Net cash flow from investing activities (14 63 1) - (14 631)
Cash flow from finanuing activines
Interest paid (1,327 (426) (1759
Proceeds from the ssue ot share caputal 26 - 26
Preterence dividends pad [426) 426
Dividend paid to minonty shareholder {103) - (194
New loans 10,967 10 967
Ordinary dividends paid {1 077) - (1,077)
Net cash flow from financing activines 8,060 - 8 060
Net decrease 1in cash and cash equivalents {1130 - (5,130}

The effects on the ¢1sh flow are considered as part of the nows o profit and toss and balance shect above
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Company Balance Shect Year ended December 31, 2005

MERY 2004
frestared
note 2}
LIt LO0Q
Notos
Fixed assets

Investments 4 7,231 10,817
7 231 10,817
Creditors Amounts falling duc within one vear 6 (37) {4 850)
NET CURRENT LIABITITIES {(37) 14,8501
NEF ASSETS 7,194 5 967

CAPITAL AND RLSLRVLS
Callud up share capiral 7 1,162 1,063
Ireasury stack 7 {449) {461)
Reserves - Paid 1 surplus ] 21,716 19,199
- Prafit and loss 8 {15 23%) {13 834y
SHAREHOIL BFRS FUNDS 9 7,194 5,967

Lhe tinancial starements were approved by the board of dirwctors and authonsed for issue on [ebruary 23, 2006
Lhey were signed on uts behalf by

M | Mowsley
Dir, ztor




Notes to Company Balance Sheet Year
ended December 31, 2003

H SIGNIFICAN T ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The separate financial statements ot the company are presented as required by the Comparies Act §985 As permicred
by chat Act, the separate financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with UK GAAT format These

financial statements present mformanon for the company, not 1bout 1ts group, which 15 presented on pages 49 - B4

Basts of preparation
I he finanual scatements have been prepared in aceordance with applicable accouneing standards and unda the

historical cost accounting rules

Under section 230 {4} of the Comparnies Act 1983 the compans 1s exempt fiom the requirement (o present its own

profit and loss account

Under ERS 1 the company 1s exempe from the requirement to prepare 1 cash flow statement on the grounds that a

parent undertahing includes the companv 1 11s own publishud consohidated finanual stacements

As the company 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of The Quarto Group, Inc the company has tahen advanege of the
excmprion contained n [ RS 8 and has theretore not disclosed rransacnons vr balinces with ennties which torm put

ot the group {or mvestees of the group quilitying s related parties)

Accounting pohicies
The following ccounting policies have been apphed consistently in dealing with wems which are considered material

in relarion to the fraancial starements, exeept as noted helow

1 he company has adopted a number of new accounung standards in these financial statements  The accounung

policies under these new standards are set oue below together with an indwanon of the cfieers of thon rdapaon

The inteoduction of FRS 23 *The eftects of chinges in toreign eachange rates and FRS 26 * Finincul instruments
measurement’ has had no matenal effect i the current o1 prior years

Investments

Investments 10 subsidiaries are stared at cost less, where appropriate provisions for impairnm

Share-bascd paviments
The fair value of employec share opuion grants 15 ¢alculazed using a tnomabt modad  The rosulong cose s chrged m
the 1ncoime statement over the vesung period ot the plans The value of the charge 15 adjusted 1o teflect expected wnd

accual levels of options vestung

Finanaal Guarantee Contracts
[ he companv has not adopted amendments to FRS 26 1 ridation o financial guarate contrwes which will apply
for periods commencing on or after Januar, 1, 2006

Where the company enters o finanaal guarantie contraces to guarantee the indebeness ot other companics within
is group, the company vonsiders these to be insurance arrangements and aweounts for them 16 such  In this respew,
the company treats the guarantee concract as 4 contngeni habiiry unod such tme 1s 1t becomes probable that che

comp-ny will be required to make a payment under the guarantee

1he company docs not uxpect the amendments 1o have any impact on che finanuial statements for the puniod
wommencing January 1, 2006
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Notes to Company Balance Sheet Ycar
ended December 31, 2005

2 PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS
Following the adoption of FRS 20 ‘Share-based payments’ the company has changed its accounting poliey 10 recognsse

sha ~-based payment transactions i s financtal statements

The company pohey for the recognition of dividends declared after the balance sheet dare has changed to comply
wich the new requirements under ERS 21 ‘Lvents after the balance vheet datd’, which bucame mandstory m thes
accounung puriod  The company s policy 1s now to onfy recopmise dividends that are declarcd before the balnec sheee

date The change has no effcct on ‘loss for the vear’ in both the current and prior year

The convernible preference shares and the converuble loan note have been recognised and presented i the fimanceal
statements under FRS 25 The impact of FRS 2§ 1s to recognise a sigmhicant poruon of the preference shares asa
labiliey and to recognise an element of the convertible loan note as equaty, s accordance with the rights attaching ro
these mstruments L he adjustment umpacted creditors falling due withun onc year, called up sharc capnal, treasuns

stock, reserves {pard m surplus) and rescrves (profit and loss)

The «ffects of the change in pohiwes are summarised as follows

AN IAR]
t b

Profir and loss account
Adimnistrative expenses - share based payment S}
I innce costs — preferetice chares {446)
Increase i foss for the year (450)
Balance sheet
Creditors Amounts fallhing due within one year
Dwidends payable ~ reduction in credror 629
Short term borrowings — inciease 1 borowings {4,850)
Total decrease tn net asscis {4221}
Capial and rescrves
Zallud up share capatal (274)
lreasury stack 125
Paid in surplus (4,704)
Profit and loss account ! 436
Total decrease in shireholders’ funds {4,221

J LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE COMPANY
Ihe loss for the fimancial year dealr wich in the hmancial statements of the parent company was £210 000 {2004
£450,000 — restated)  As pernutted by Secnion 230 of the Companies Ace 1985, no separare protu and loss sccount 15

presented w respect of the parent company

'y

»

X o o
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Notes to Company Balance

ended December 31, 2005

4 INVESTMENTS

Ax January 1, 2005
Addiuons

Iransfer to subsidiary

At December 31, 2005

Sheer Year

10 817
2,311
{5,697}

7231

The addions comprise the wcquistion of Memier Beoks Linred (note 27) and che purchse of the minority interest
in Global Book Publishing Pry Led

5  SUBSIDIARIES

INAME BLACE AR DATE FAMED AN T 1Y SPACENTACY N
£F B IR AN FAIFY SIEARE Tl e
Quarto Publishing ple Cngland 100,000 shares of £1 exh L00* Co-edinon
1 Aprl, 1976 Publishing
Quarte In Dilaware USA 60 shares of no par valwe i00° Co cdinun
16 Qctober, 1986 Publishing
Wescern Screent and Sign Lngland 1,500 shares ot £1 cach 100* Publishoy, -
Limured 24 November, 1961
Quarto Magzines Fngland 1,000 ~hares of £1 each 100 Publishing B
Limiced 20 May, 1986
Regent Publishing Hong Keng 1,000 shares of HR$10 cach 75 Cocdioon
Services Linured 23 Ocrober, 1985 Publishing,
Apple Press Limuted Lngland 100 shares of £1 each 100 PI.WETLL_E.E—
3 June, 1984
Quarto Australia Pry Lid  Auvstrala 8 reduemable preference 100+ Publishing
14 September, 1981 shares of A%l each and 103
ordinary shares of A$1 cach
Prermer Books [mited New Zeland 400,000 shates ot 70* Publishing
27 September, 1996 NZ$1 each
RotoVision 5 A Swirzerlnd 1,500 shares of 5F¢500 each “Tiooe " Co-edinon

18 Julv, 1977

Publsshing

Rockport Publishers lac Massachuserrs USA 4,000 shares of no par value 100 I’ulrahlﬁ,;_h
4 Decumber, 1985

Buok Salus Inc Delaware, USA 835 shares of no par value 83 " Pabhshing
13 December, 1972

Scata-Tornabene Art Delaware USA 1 210 shares of no 100 Publishane

Publishing Co, Inc 29 June, 1987 par value

Walter Foster Delaware US 19,625 shares of 100 Publuhm?

Publishing, Inc 10 Februaiy, 1988 U580 01 each

Global Book Publishing Australia 1,000 shares of " ooe Co-udinon

Pry Lumnued 4 November 1999 AS1 each Publishing

Creanve Publishing Delaware, USA 100 shares of oo —Fulm;hlrl;;

mternational, Inc 28 june, 2004 USS0 Cf cach o

Aurum Press Limired England 382,502 shargs of 80 Publishing
31 May, 1977 4] each

1 ifetime Distnbutors Australia 100,004 shares of 75 Pubhshing

‘The Book People’ 3 December, 1950 A%l each

Pry Tinmuted




Notes to Company Balance Sheet Year

ended December 31, 2005

5  CREDiTORS AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YFAR

Amounts owed to subsidiary underrakings

Short term borrowings

7 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL AND TRFASURY STOCK

DRI T a1 v e 25

HEIR] 2003
{restated

note 1)

Fon £000
3T -

- 4,850

37 4,850

Detatls of called up share capial and trasury stock are set out in notes 24 o 26 of the consolidated hinancial

statcments

8 RETAINED tARNINGS AMD OTHER RESERVES

At beginning ot year
Prior year adjustment (note 2) - dwidends
- preference shares / loan note

Adjusted balance at beganming of vear
On shares sssucd during the vear

L oss tor the you

Lauity sereled trransactions nee of tax
Dwidends

At end of year

Pudn Pronr and
surplus  loss swcount
{restated {restiied
nore 2j nofe 2}
£00¢G £004)
23,903 114 27M
- h29

{4 704) (193)
19 199 (13 834)
2,517 -
- {210h)

- [

. {1.197)
21,716 (13,235)

¢ Q)
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Notes to Company Balance Sheer Year

ended December 31, 2005

9 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT IN SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS

LLoss for the finwnual year

Dividends

Retaned profit / {loss) for the finincial vear
Fquitv element of loan note

fssue of shares

Lquuty setcled transactions net of tax

Nt movement in sharehelders® funds
Sharehelders” tunds ar January |, 2005

Sharcholders” tunds at Decembar 31 2005

o4

estited

note 3)

' {00
{(21h 14450
{1 197) (1077
{1307} 11327
N

2,628 26
f 4
1227 (1 4v2)
§ 947 7459
7194 5,967

The opening shareholders’ funds at Junuary 1, 2004 as previously reported imounced (o £11 711,000 Uhus hs been

wnereased by the prior year adjustment of £583,000 with respect 10 dividends and reduced by £4,835,000 with respect

to preference shares

O LONTHIGENT LIABIITIES

Connngent habihoes are disdlosed m note 29 to the group accounts




Five Year Suminary

Results

Revenue
Operaung profic
Profir before tax

Profit attnibuzable to equity holders

Assets cmployed
Non-current assets
Lurrent 1s5eds
Current habihnes
Non-turrent labihines

Net 1ssers

Finnced by

L quiry
Viinonty mterests

Key statistics

Earmngs per share

Miluted carmings per share
Adjusted diluted earnings per share

IFRS Uk GAADP

200 2004 20013 2002 2301
L L0090 LACD L000 L000
95,038 79,750 74,623 74,735 73,620
6,648 7,007 5965 607 4,923
4,428 5,392 4 873 4 880 3190
2,497 1,734 4,559 4,537 2 838
23,717 22,052 12,246 9,251 7 662
66,503 57,016 50,608 51,509 52,306
(31,983) {313 549) {24,309 {24 576} {54,22%5)
146,381) (39 248) (50,463 (30,291 (1,692)
11,856 6,271 8,088 7,893 4,051
8,212 3,584 5.632 3,387 502
3,644 2.687 2 436 2,506 3,349
11,856 6,271 8,088 5893 4051
13 2p 20 8p 18 9p 20 1p 11 7p
129p 19 6p 18 2p 19 Jp 117p
20 8p 20 2p 21 2p 20 tp 18 1p

The amounts disciosed tor 2003 and earher penods are stated on ¢he bass of Uk GAAD because it 1s not pracucable

to restate amnunts for periods prior to the date of transinon ¢o IFRS  The principal dutferences between UK GAATP

and "FRS are explained in note 34 to the accounts which provides an explanaton of the rransition to IFRSs




